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Foreword by the Company President
The year 2011 was difficult for Aero, but successful. The company
had to deal with delays in deliveries required by the customers
of the major production programs, however, it retained profitability,
mainly due to the increased efficiency and cost-saving measures
during the year. Business success in the form of concluding
a contract and commencement of participation in the KC-390
international military project with the Brazil company Embraer
or for example developing the L-39 support program provide good
foundation for the future and strengthen the trend of diversification
of the program portfolio.
However, Aero does not forget to execute the existing programs
and it worked in 2011 on streamlining the functioning of the company
processes and implementing new systems for the benefit of continuous
improvement. AS9100 Revision C re-certification, ISO 14001
certification (environment) and ISO 18001 certification (Operational
Health and Safety) and implementation of BCMS (Risk Management
System) in conjunction with developing the own WING system
are prerequisites for further improvement. Significant investment
in composite production, which will be completed in April 2012,
is also an important step improving the competitive advantage
of the company.
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Continuation of the CSeries development program as well as launching
of the new KC-390 program move Aero further into the role of
a risk-sharing partner of the world's leading manufacturers.
Detachment of the Engineering Division is a clear signal of the
importance of this key activity for the next strategic direction
of the company. Focusing on the development and advanced
assembly with a high level of integration of mechanical, electrical
and hydraulic systems goes hand in hand with the systematic
development of outsourcing activities, especially in the areas
of manufacturing of primary components and design and manufacturing
of tooling, which will shift more and more to the supply chain
in the years to come.

59
BILLION CZK
IS BACKLOG
OF AERO FOR
NEXT TEN YEARS

The following period, as I strongly believe, will not only maintain
the current high dynamics of development of the company, but it
will also strengthen the position of Aero as an important and
sought-after employer, preferred supplier and partner integrating
a strong supply chain.
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EMBRAER
KC-390

? The most modern tactical transport aircraft
? Range up to 1400 nautical miles with
23 tons of cargo
? A pair of high-bypass turbofan IAE V2500
engines provides exceptional efficiency
and low operating costs

Company Profile
Corporate Profile
AERO Vodochody a.s. (hereinafter “Aero”) is a joint stock company, which
originated on 2 January 1991, and it is based in Odolena Voda, Dolínek,
U Letiště no. 374, PCN 250 70. It was registered on 2 January 1991
in the Commercial Register at the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
File No. 449, Company ID No: 00010545, Tax ID No: CZ00010545.
AeroisthebiggestmanufacturerofaviationtechnologyintheCzechRepublic.
It is engaged in the development, production, sale and servicing of
military and civil aviation technology. It focuses above all on cooperation
with leading aircraft manufacturers in international cooperation projects
and it is a long-term partner of several armies in the military program,
especially the Army of the Czech Republic. It has an established quality
management system according to AS9100 / ISO 9001 and it is the holder
of all the relevant company attestations and certificates as a whole and for
partial processes in accordance with national and international standards.
By the end of 2006 the Czech Consolidation Agency owned almost 100%
of Aero’s shares. On 4 January 2007 the Penta Group became Aero’s
sole shareholder and successfully completed the restructuring project
in the company in the same year. From 2007 to 2010 Aero achieved
an accumulated profit of 1,348 mil. CZK. In 2011 the profit was
174.55 mil. CZK. Aero’s registered capital is 1,884 billion CZK and
has been repaid in full. In 2009 losses of previous years were settled
amounting to 4,081 billion CZK with a reduction in the registered
capital and issue of shares worth 950 mil. CZK.

Aerostructures Division
The Aerostructures Division is involved in cooperation in important
aviation programs globally. Aero’s main capabilities are to manufacture
complex aircraft assemblies with a high degree of product finalization,
including integration and testing of systems, supply management
and final inspection. Furthermore, aircraft landing gears and
production and development of composites have been included
in product portfolio in the last year. The Aerostructures Division
is involved in the complete life cycle of commercial and military
projects and it thereby combines the company’s extensive experience
in the aviation industry acquired during more than ninety years
of its existence with concurrent implementation of the latest
technologies, methods of testing and principles of lean production.
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Aero continuously expands its portfolio of customers among the world
leaders in aviation production. Since 2009 it has been striving to achieve
a balance between production programs and risk-sharing development
programs to ensure long-term, highly prospective contracts. The main
customers of the Aerostructures Division are Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation
(programs S-76D, UH-60M), Embraer (KC-390), Sonaca (Bombardier
CSeries),Messier-Bugatti-Dowty (AirbusA320),Latecoere(Embraer170/190),
AleniaAeronautica(since1January2012AleniaAermacchi,C-27J),andother.

Defence & MRO Division
The Defence & MRO Division (Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul) of
AERO Vodochody a.s. is specialized in the support and development
of its final products – the L-39, L-59, and L-159 aircraft as well as
in providing various services in aircraft repairs, upgrades, modifications,
and testing of aviation technology. The L-159 system, which together with
the L-159 ALCA/B/T aircraft involves integrated logistic support, ground
training system, means for planning and evaluation of flights and other
equipment, has been successfully established in the Air Force of the
Army of the Czech Republic. The single-seater L-159 ALCA light combat
aircraft were included in the weapons of the Army of the Czech Republic
in 2000, the two-seater L-159T1 trainers in 2007. The L-159 aircraft
fulfill many tasks from advanced and operation training, support for
ground armed forces to reconnaissance missions and air defense. They
regularly participate in NATO international training exercises (Tactical
Leadership Program, NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter or Flying Rhino).

1348
MILLION CZK
IS CUMULATED
PROFIT OF AERO
SINCE 2007

Aero continues to provide support for the users of L-39 and L-59 aircraft.
The Defence & MRO Division offers for the customers of the L-39/L-59 aircraft
an extensive portfolio of services ranging from the extension of service life
and overhauls to upgrades of all their systems. In addition to programs
associated with in-house aircraft production, the Defence & MRO Division
also offers to the customers the services connected with modifications
and testing of their aircraft. In order to secure its activities, the Defence
& MRO Division has capacities for aircraft and aviation product engineering
and designs, logistics, flight test center, as well as premises and preparation
and testing equipment for production and maintenance of the aircraft.
Through its subsidiary company Clarex it also provides support
and maintenance for DV-2 jet engines. The Defence & MRO Division
is the holder of the authorizations DOA Part-21/23/25, POA Part-21,
EASA Part-145 MRO and EASA Part-147 Civil Aircraft Training.
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Strategic Objectives
The year 2011 meant for AV the peak of several years of intensive
efforts to win new projects, customers and related growth and
diversification. The contract with Embraer signed in April 2011 for
the development and production of segments of the KC-390 aircraft
confirmed the position of Aero as a significant player of the world
aviation industry, not only in manufacturing but also in development.
Thanks to the contracts for the CSeries, KC-390 aircraft and for the
UH-60M Blackhawk helicopter, Aero has the growth of revenue
secured until 2018 to nearly triple of the level of 2011. The main
objective for the near future thus becomes primarily the improvement
of processes and increase of capacities, both internally and within
the supply chain, which are the essential steps for successful
implementation of the CSeries and KC-390 programs into production.
Objectives for the year 2012
? Startup of the CSeries program production – delivery of the first
8 prototypes and 3 serial leading edges
? Continued development of the KC-390 aircraft leading edge
? Outsourcing of more than 300,000 hours in development and
manufacture of tolling/jigs for the KC-390 project
? Certification of 5 suppliers according to the WING system
? Start of production of composites and obtaining NADCAP
certification for the composite facility

Objectives until the year 2015
? Developing, prototyping and start of production of KC-390
? Startup of the CSeries serial production
? Acquisition of another risk-sharing project that will build on the
development activities associated with KC-390
? Development of relations within the Confederation of Czech
Aviation Industry
? Certification of total 20 suppliers according to the WING system
? Acquisition of another customer for L-159
? Sale of the Ae-270 project
? Development of MRO activities beyond the L-39/59/159 product lines

169%
HIGHER SALES
AERO EXPECTS
TO HAVE IN 2018

Portfolio of Companies
Aero is a 100% owner of the company Letiště Vodochody a.s., private
international airport with the outer boundary. In Slovakia Aero owns
100% of the company Clester Trading a.s., which is the sole owner
of the company Clarex Investments a.s. The company Clarex
Investments a.s. was established with the purpose to provide
overhauls of the DV-2 engines for the L-59 aircraft in Tunisia, which
it successfully does. By expanding the portfolio of manufacturing
and service capabilities of the group Aero supports both the existing
customers of the L-59 aircraft as well as it creates the potential
of development of AERO Vodochody a.s. in the military area (service,
maintenance and repairs). Aero also owns 100% of the Rotortech
Aero Composites Ltd. with its domicile in Cambridge, United
Kingdom. In the beginning of 2011 Aero started reconstruction
of production facilities for the composite production and the production
was thus transferred from the Rotortech Aero Composites. The entire
process should be completed during 2012.
In November 2011 the merger was finished with the subsidiary company
Technometra Radotín, a.s., manufacturer of aircraft landing gears
and other aircraft units. The merger represented a logical step after
the successful transfer of production capacities from the location
in Praha-Radotín to the production facilities in Vodochody.
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History of Aero
Early Years
Aero was founded on 25 February 1919 and was based in Prague’s Old
Town while its production plant was located in Prague-Bubeneč. In 2009
it celebrated its 90th anniversary and is therefore ranked as one of the
oldest aviation technology manufacturers in the world. From the very
start Aero focused on the development and production of aircraft, aircraft
parts and repair and as early as 1919 flew its first in-house type of aircraft
– the Aero A-1. This was soon followed by an order from the Ministry
of Defense for series production of this type of aircraft designed for
training army pilots – a typical product of a far more distant future!

Expansion
Higher-performance trainers followed and after production was
moved to the new plant in Prague in the city district of Vysočany
(1923), this laid the foundation for a new family of Aero A-11
and A-12 reconnaissance, bomber and trainer biplanes. Army pilots
soon became famous for breaking records and winning races in Aero
aircraft. Aero – at this time a private enterprise owned by Dr. Vladimír
Kabeš – became the main supplier for the Ministry of Defense
and for the Ministry of Public Works (civil aviation).
This was soon followed by the first foreign customers staring with
Finland. The period of the first Czechoslovak Republic brought Aero
many Czechoslovak firsts: it constructed the prototype of the first
domestic fighter plane, designed the first single-role cabin transport
aircraft, the first twin-engine aircraft, first seaplane with locally
constructed floats, introduced a braced high-wing monoplane and also
pioneered a practical design for a wooden cantilever wing structure.

War Production
The company’s expanded capabilities were fully utilized and later
developed during the German occupation when Aero produced
stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with full jigging for
reconnaissance and training missions – the Focke-Wulf Fw 189 and
Siebel Si 204. Immediately after the war ended, the nationalized
Aero continued to manufacture and repair aircraft. Modified German

12
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types of aircraft were manufactured for the Czechoslovak Air Force
and civil aviation. Shortly after the war a new remarkable domestic
type had been introduced – the high-performance, twin-engine
all-metal Aero 45 four-seater.

Jet Age
In 1953 new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft production
were built in Vodochody and operation began in the same year.
The production, in which several Czechoslovak aviation plants were
involved, focused on large-scale series production of the licensedbuilt Soviet MiG-15 aircraft and its derivatives. The supersonic MiG-19
and MiG-21 aircraft were manufactured in Aero in the 1960s
and 1970s, paving the way in production capabilities to the domestic
programs of the L-29 Delfín and L-39 Albatros jet trainers.

1919
ALREADY IN THIS
YEAR AERO
FLEW ITS FIRST
IN-HOUSE TYPE
OF AIRCRAFT
– THE AERO A-1

A-24
A-10

In-house Jet Trainers
In the second half of the 1950s the need for jet trainer aircraft became
more and more urgent. The result of concentrated efforts in developing
an optimized airframe and domestic jet engine was the maiden flight
of the L-29 aircraft in 1959. The final step on Aero’s road to mass
production of jet trainers came in 1961 near Moscow: the L-29 Delfín
won in the comparative testing of three different prototypes and was
declared the most suitable trainer in the Eastern Bloc countries.
Production and deliveries continued smoothly for the next decade
during which the second generation of more powerful and more
efficient L-39 aircraft was developed. Aero’s production and assembly
halls were occupied with the production of the L-39 during the 1970s
and 1980s. A number of air forces throughout the world still use the
excellent training quality of this affordable aircraft.
The family of L-39 Albatros aircraft expanded considerably in the
course of time and created a perfect basis for further development.
The advent of the 1990s saw the incorporation of Western avionics
and standards, and the use of more powerful American engines and
global equipment, thereby opening a new chapter in the life of the
company. The L-159 aircraft was developed.
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History Timeline
Aero - továrna
létadel (Aero
– Aircraft factory)
founded in Prague
A-1, first in-house
designed military
training aircraft

1919

+

A-10, first
in-house designed
civil passenger
aircraft

1921

+

A-11, family
of successful
military biplanes
(bomber and
reconnaissance
aircraft)

1923

+

A-34
“Blackbird”,
De Havilland
DH-50, a passenger first of the family
of sport
aircraft built
and training
under British
light biplanes
license

1925

+

1929

A-100, family
of military
biplanes
(bomber and
reconnaissance
aircraft)

+

1932

+

MB-200,
all-metal
bomber
manufactured
under French
license
(Marcel Bloch)

1937

+

A-A-304,
twin-engine
low-wing
military aircraft
A-300,
twin-engine
low-wing
bomber

1938

+

Delivery of the
first L-159
aircraft to the
Czech Air Force

Maiden flight
of the L-39
Albatros
in-house
designed jet
trainer (more
than 2900
aircraft
delivered
in 1971-1999)

Maiden flight
of the MiG-21
Fishbed
supersonic
fighter built
under Soviet
license
(194 aircraft
delivered
in 1962-1972)

1962
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+

Maiden flight
of the L-159 ALCA
single-seater light
combat aircraft
(72 aircraft
delivered to the
Maiden flight Czech Air Force)
of L-39MS
jet trainer,
Joint venture
for export
established with
designated
Taiwanese
as L-59
company AIDC
Super Albatros for the develop(60 aircraft ment and producunits delivered tion of the Ae-270
in 1992-1996)
civil aircraft

Boeing’s
arrival
at Aero
(owns 35%
of shares)

Production of
passenger door Production of the
polished skins for gun bay doors
the Boeing 757
of the F-18
aircraft launched Super Hornet
for Boeing St.
Maiden flight of Louis launched
the first prototype
of the Ae-270
Production
aircraft
of the Boeing
767 sets of parts
Production of the and subassem- Maiden flight
S-76 helicopter
blies for BAE
of the L-159B
for the Sikorsky
SYSTEMS
two-seater
Aircraft Corpora(today Spirit
advanced
tion launched
AeroSystems)
trainer

1968 + 1986 + 1997 + 1998 + 2000 + 2001 + 2002 +
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C4/C-104
(Bucker Bu-131
Jungmann)
training
and aerobatic
biplane

Privatization
of Aero
announced
by the Czech
government
Aero signs
Completion
a long-term
of the delivery
general
of L-159
aircraft to the contract for the
Czech Air Force post-guarantee
support of
the Czech
Boeing’s
Air Force L-159
departure
squadron
from Aero

+

Ae-45,
twin-engine
civil
aircraft

Aero moved
from Prague
to new
facilities
in Vodochody

Maiden flight
of the
L-29 Delfín
(/Dolphin),
the first jet
trainer designed
in Czechoslovakia
(3 500 aircraft
in 1963-1974)

1939 + 1943 + 1947 + 1953 + 1954 + 1958 + 1959

Ae-270 aircraft
awarded the
EASA Type
Certificate

2004

C-3
(Siebel
Si-204D),
twin-engine
military
aircraft

Maiden flight
of the MiG-15
jet fighter
built under
Soviet license
(3 405 aircraft
delivered in
1954-1962)

Maiden flight
of the MiG-19
Farmer
supersonic
fighter built
under Soviet
license
(103 aircraft
delivered
in 1958-1962)

Penta, the private
equity group,
becomes
the owner of Aero
L-159T1 advanced
trainers delivered to
the Czech Air Force
Joint venture with
AIDC ends
Penta acquires
British company
Rotortech
Composites Ltd.

Ae-270
aircraft
Production of the
awarded
C-27J Spartan
an FAA centre wing box for
Type
Alenia Aeronautica
certificate
launched

Aero increases
the registered capital
in Letiště Vodochody a.s.
by a non-monetary
investment
Production of
contribution
the Embraer
170/190 door
Aero purchases
subassemRotortech Aero
blies for
Composites Limited
Latecoere
launched
Aero purchases
Clarex
Contract
Investments a.s.
signed for
the production First contract signed
of suspensions for an international
for the JAS-39 risk-sharing project
Gripen with
with Belgium
SAAB
Company SONACA

2005 + 2006 + 2007 + 2008 + 2009 +

+

Signed contract
for the production
of the cockpit for
the Black Hawk
UH-60M military
helicopter with
Sikorsky
Production of the
Aero signs
landing gears of a risk-sharing
Airbus A320
contract with
(Messier-BugattiBrazilian
Dowty) in Aero
company
Vodochody
Embraer
launched
on design
and production
Completion
of segments
of the transfer of new military
of production
transport
from Technometra
multi-role
Radotín
aircraft KC-390

2010 + 2011

+
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JAS-39
GRIPEN
? Multi-purpose combat aircraft
? Due to use of most modern technologies,
JAS-39 is able to provide a wide range
of combat tasks and carry the newest
types of weapon systems

Photo: Robert Gardner
Copyright Gripen International

Organisational structure

Company bodies
and management

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2011

PRESIDENT
Ladislav Šimek

Board of directors as of 31 December 2011
chairman:
Ladislav Šimek

STRATEGIC
MARKETING

STRATEGIC
PROJECTS

Martin
Kowalczyk
Director

Petr
Řehoř
Director

HEAD
OF DESIGN
ORGANISATION

SECURITY

QAULITY
ASSURANCE

FINANCE

Miloš
Trnobranský

Jan
Svoboda

Zdeněk
Mlejnek
Director

Michal
Flídr
VP

HUMAN
RESOURCES

Director

members:
Petr Brychta
Ondřej Benáček

Supervisory board as of 31 December 2011
chairman:
Václav Štajner
members:
Zdeněk Sýkora
Jan Borýsek

DEFENCE &MRO
Jan Štechr
EVP

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT
&SALES
Miloslav
Hostaša
VP

DEVELOPMENT DESIGN
ENGINEERING

AEROSTRUCTURES

McCluskey Gerrard Anthony
VP

Philippe Michel
EVP

QUALITY
ASSURANCE

OPERATIONS

DEFENCE
&MRO
PROGRAMY

DESIGN

STATICS

Martin
Cerha

Miloš
Trnobranský
Director

Petr
Kudrna
VP

Michal
Kaprálek

Tomáš
Hibš

CLAREX

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT
&SALES
Ředitel

Top management as of 31 December 2011

PRODUCTION
PROGRAMS

STRATEGIC
SOURCING

SUPPLY
CHAIN

OPERATIONS

Monika
Vajnerová
Director

Karel
Klíma
ředitel

Director

Josef
Kadlec
VP

ROTORTECH

Ladislav Šimek
Philippe Michel
Jan Štechr
Gerrard McCluskey
Michal Flídr
Miroslav Hostaša
Petr Kudrna
Josef Kadlec
unoccupied
Petr Řehoř
Martin Kowalczyk
Zdeněk Mlejnek
Karel Klíma
unoccupied
Monika Vajnerová
Miloš Trnobranský
unoccupied

President
EVP Aerostructures
EVP Defence & MRO
VP Development Design Engineering
VP Finance
VP Business Development & Sales (Defence & MRO Division)
VP Defence & MRO Programs
VP Operations
Human Resources
Director Strategic Projects
Director Strategic Marketing
Director Quality Assurance
Director Strategic Sourcing
Director Supply Chain
Director Production Programs (Aerostructures Division)
Director MRO Operations
Business Development & Sales

Rem. CLAREX, ROTORTECH - subsidiary companies
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Key Events of 2011

AERO Vodochody
organized the 1st
International
Conference
of Aviation
Education in the
Czech Republic

FEBRUARY

+

Signing of the risk-sharing
contract with the Brazil
company Embraer
for engineering, development
and production of a new
military transport
multi-role aircraft – KC-390

Termination
of production
of composites
in subsidiary company
Rotortech Aero
Composites Ltd,
know-how transferred
to AERO Vodochody a.s.

The Sikorsky Aircraft
Corp. awarded
AERO Vodochody a.s. with
UTC Supplier Gold for 2010

+

APRIL

MAY

+

300

The first cockpit
of the Black Hawk
helicopter
manufactured
AERO Vodochody
became the founder
member of the
Confederation
of Czech Aviation
Industry

JUNE

+

AERO Vodochody
presented its
products and
services at the
air show
in Le Bourget,
France

JULY

+

S-76C
HELICOPTERS
WAS DELIVERED
BY AERO
TO SIKORSKY
AIRCRAFT
CORPORATION
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EMB
JUNE
SEPT

The last S-76C++
helicopter delivered
Contract concluded
for delivery of spare
parts for the L-39 aircraft
with the Ministry
of Defense of Vietnam
AERO Vodochody
presented
its products
and services
at the MAKS
air show
in Moscow

AUGUST

20

+

Contract concluded
with the Ministry
of Defense of the Slovak
Republic for extension
of service life of the L-39
aircraft airframe

SEPTEMBER

annual report 2011 AERO Vodochody a.s.

+

Commencement
of serial
production
of composite parts
for SAAB

OCTOBER

key events of 2011

+

Merger with subsidiary
company Technometra
Radotín, a.s.
Gerrard McCluskey
accessed as a new
vice-president of the
Engineering Division

NOVEMBER

+

Completed
building
part of the
new serial
composite facility

DECEMBER

+
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ALENIA C-27J

Photo: K. Tokunaga

? Medium-sized military tactical
transport aircraft
? It is characterized by great operating
flexibility and low operating costs
? The aircraft is designed to carry cargo,
supply of troops, transport
of paratroopers or wounded
and for other special tasks
? C-27J aircraft is used by army of Italy,
Greek, Bulgaria, Romania, Lithuania,
USA, Mexico and Morocco

Report on Business Activities
Commercial Activity
Aerostructures Division
Development strategy of the Aerostructures division is focusing on
three key areas, which are high level assembly aircraft structural
units, landing gears, and composite assemblies.
The division seeks a balance between long-term developmentmanufacturing contracts and medium-term cooperations. Development
capacities are continuously increased in accordance with the
strategy set. An important milestone in implementing the strategy
of the division is contract concluded with the Brazilian company
Embraer for the delivery of 4 key structures and development of
fixed leading edge of a new military transport aircraft KC-390 in 2011.
The division continuously focuses also on developing of relationships
with existing customers, as evidenced by signing a contract for
deliveries of composite assemblies for Sikorsky.
Facts expected in 2012:
? Delivery of all CSeries prototypes and commencement of serial
production, while continuous support to the full certification of aircraft
? Commencement of full production of cockpits for UH-60M Black
Hawk and S-76D helicopters and start of the international version
of cockpits of Black Hawk S70i
? Commencement of detailed design work on the KC-390, and
preparation of the assembly line
? Opening the new composite workshop, startup of the composite
programs and obtaining NADCAP qualification by the end of 2012

Sikorsky S-76
Program Description
? Sikorsky S-76 is a very successful twin-engine civil medium
category helicopter with a maximum takeoff weight of 6 tons,
designed for carrying up to 12 passengers. From the beginning
of production in 1976, Sikorsky delivered more than 700 helicopters
to customers mainly in Europe and the United States
? Aero has been manufacturing the S-76 since 2000 and has
delivered more than 300 helicopters so far
? In 2011 Aero started the serial production of the S-76D version,
which gradually replaced the current S-76C++
? In 2011 Aero produced 9 units of the S-76C++ and 6 units of the
S-76D type
Product and Role of Aero
? Fully assembled and equipped helicopter ready for installation
of dynamic parts (engines, gearbox, rotors)
? Full responsibility for production and supply chain
? Production of approximately 45% of the 8,000 various types of
parts and components including tubing and wiring harnesses
? Installation of avionic, hydraulic, electrical and fuel systems
? Fuselage assembly, including installation of composite parts
? Responsibility for final inspection
? Responsibility for guarantee and after-guarantee service
and deliveries of spare parts
Program Outlook
? Aero is expecting annual deliveries of 32 units of the S-76D
helicopters in the long-term

8500
COMPONENTS
IS ON ONE S-76
HELICOPTER

Aerostructures Division Programs
In 2011 Aerostructures Division delivered the products for a total
of 8 families of aircraft while concurrent intensive development
of the fixed leading edge of the wing for the CSeries aircraft
of the Canadian manufacturer Bombardier, and the first stage
of engineering of parts for the KC-390 aircraft started.
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Report on Business Activities
Embraer KC-390
Program Description
? A new multi-purpose military transport aircraft of medium size,
designed for transportation of cargo and people, a direct competitor
of the C-130 Hercules by Lockheed Martin. The KC-390 project
was initiated by the Brazilian Air Force or by the Department
of Defense, which ordered 28 aircraft units and agreed to partially
finance their development. Czech Republic, Argentina and Portugal
joined Brazil and also expressed the interest to buy the aircraft
? Aero is a strategic risk-sharing partner of Embraer
? The first flight of KC-390 is expected in 2014; the aircraft is
supposed to be put in operation in 2016
Product and Role of Aero
? Aero is fully responsible for the development, industrialization,
support in certification and production of the wing fixed leading edg
? Aero is fully responsible for industrialization and production of all
doors, ramp and fuselage rear part
Výhled programu
? Aero expects to start serial deliveries in 2015, followed by 19 sets
of production in 2016, and the annual cycle of 18 to 21 supplies
in the next years
? In April 2012 Embraer registered the orders for 60 aircraft units
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Bombardier CSeries
Program Description
? Bombardier CSeries aircraft is a new single-aisle aircraft for
commercial traffic on short and medium lines, two versions of the
aircraft (CS100 and CS300) will carry between 100 and 150 passengers
? CSeries will have the lowest operating costs in its class due to the
advanced design of airframe and engines
? The aircraft prototype is expected in 2012
? Aero is a development and risk-sharing partner of the Belgian
company Sonaca
? Aero is the exclusive supplier of the wing fixed leading edge
Product and Role of Aero
? Fully assembled and equipped wing fixed leading edge (FLE) ready
for installation to the aircraft
? Each assembly (left and right wing) contains more than 2,000
components
? Aero is fully responsible for design, industrialization, certification
and production
Program Outlook
? Aero expects to start serial deliveries in 2013 and to produce
50 assemblies in 2015 and 75 assemblies from 2016
? To April 2012 Bombardier registered firm orders for 138 aircraft
units and options for 134 units

2014
IN THIS YEAR
IS EXPECTED
THE FIRST FLEW
OF KC-390,
THE AIRCRAFT
SUPPOSED TO BE
PUT IN OPERATION
IN 2016
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Sikorsky UH-60M Black Hawk
Program Description
? Helicopters of the type series Sikorsky S-70/UH-60 are currently
the most common type of military transport helicopter and also
the main transportation helicopter of armed forces of the United States
? UH-60M is the latest version
? The contract between Aero and Sikorsky was concluded in the beginning
of 2010, the first cockpit was successfully delivered in June 2011
? During 2011, 3 cockpits were delivered
? Aero is one of the two cockpit suppliers (50% of production
in the long term)
? The program has a very stable and long-term outlook
Product and Role of Aero
? Aero delivers a fully equipped cockpit for the UH-60M helicopter
? Manufacturing of parts including the application of special processes
? Installation of composite parts
? Installation of electrical harnesses and control systems
? Responsibility for guarantee and after-guarantee service and
deliveries of spare parts
Program Outlook
? Aero plans to deliver 32 cockpits in 2012
? The program of production of the UH-60M helicopters counts on
the total production of 1,360 helicopters until 2026 for the needs
of the Armed Forces of the United States (excluding exports);
approximately 420 units of UH-60M were delivered so far
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Alenia C-27J Spartan
Program Description
? Alenia C-27J is a military tactical transportation aircraft with
a maximum payload of 11.5 tons
? The main users of the aircraft are the United States Air Force and
further the countries of Central and Eastern Europe
? Aero is since 2007 the sole supplier of the center wing box, which
is a critical structural and system unit of the aircraft Aero manufactures the center wing boxes for all versions of the C-27J aircraft
? The Alenia C-27J program is a stable source of revenue for Aero
Product and Role of Aero
? Fully assembled, equipped and tested center wing box ready
for installation to the aircraft
? Aero is fully responsible for the production and supply chain
of the program
? 63% of 3,200 components are manufactured directly in Aero
? The center wing box assembly includes integral tanks, pylons
for engine installation, and mechanical systems of wing, fuel,
hydraulic lines and electrical harnesses
? Aero is responsible for testing of all systems and for complete
final inspection – the center wing box is supplied directly to
the production line without inspection at the customer
? Responsibility for guarantee and after-guarantee service and
deliveries of spare parts
Program Outlook
? It is expected that 350 aircraft units of the C-27J category will be
sold throughout the world over the next ten years
? In April 2012 Aero registered 9 binding orders
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Landing gears production
Programs Description
? Aero is the original manufacturer of landing gears for small aircraft
and supplier of components for landing gears for large transport aircraft
? In 2010 Aero started to deliver components for the landing gears
of the Airbus A320 family (A318/319/320), single-aisle passengers
medium-range aircraft, which is currently the best selling aircraft
family series aircraft for Messier-Bugatti-Dowty
? Aero manufactures landing gears for twin-engine turboprop
transport aircraft L-410 Turbolet of Aircraft Industries company,
able to transport up to 19 passengers
? Aero produces landing gears for all the training and combat
aircraft of its own production
Product and Role of Aero
? Aero is one of two suppliers of components (side-stay assembly)
for the landing gears of the Airbus A320 series for Messier-BugattiDowty company, the world's leading manufacturer of landing gear
systems Aero manufactures fully assembled and tested components,
ready for immediate installation to the landing gear
? For L-410 aircraft, Aero produces complete nose and main
landing gears
? Aero holds the type certificate for landing gears for all aircraft
of its own production L-39/59/159 and Ae-270 aircraft
Programs Outlook
? For Messier-Bugatti-Dowty program Aero expects a gradual
increase in production in accordance to the continuous increase
of annual production of A320 aircraft
? L-410 program should produce 12 landing gears per year with
possible increase the production
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Other Programs
SAAB JAS-39 Gripen
? Fully equipped NATO standard weapons pylons
? Deliveries in the first phase of the program completed in January
2011, further deliveries will be done during the year 2012
Embraer 170/190
? Deliveries of hinges and internal structures for all doors for the
Embraer 170/175/190/195 aircraft
? Aero’s customer is Latecoere
F/A-18 Super Hornet
? The sole supplier of the assembled gun bay doors for the F/A-18
Super Hornet
? Deliveries started in 2001, 400 doors delivered so far
? Program includes production of parts, special processes, assemblies
Airbus A320
? Since 2005 Aero has been delivering smaller assemblies of
structural parts for the tail section of the A320 and A340 aircraft
comprising more than 250 assemblies for Premium Aerotec

2500
HELICOPTERS
OF H-60 FAMILY
ARE IN SERVICE
AT THE MILITARY
FORCES
OF THE USA

190
Embraer 170/
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SOLDIERS CAN
FLY IN MILITARY
TACTICAL
TRANSPORT
AIRCRAFT C-27J
SPARTAN

F/A-18 Super Hornet

Airbus A320
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Defence & MRO Division Programs

The main areas of activity of the division in 2011 was the support for
the L-159 in the Army of the Czech Republic and performing the
contract for repair of the aircraft after 8 years of operation (PP2000).
One half is fulfilled of the total number of 20 aircraft. Five aircraft
units were handed over in 2011. Contract for storage of the surplus
L-159 aircraft units was fulfilled as a part of the L-159 program,
and a contract for deliveries of new multifunction displays (MFD's)
for the L-159 was signed. Performance according to the contract on
after-guarantee service (FOSS) continued – the subjects of contract
were the deliveries of spare parts and consumables, repairs and
technical consulting and improvements of the maintenance system.

Support for the L-159 aircraft in the Army of the Czech Republic
? Performance of the contract for PP2000 – one half of the total
number of 20 aircraft units completed, 5 aircraft units were
handed over in 2011
? Performance of the contract for storage of the surplus L-159
aircraft units
? Signed contract for deliveries of MFD
? Performance of the after-guarantee contract (FOSS) – subject
of contract were deliveries of spare parts and consumables,
repairs and technical consulting and improvements of the
maintenance system

Aero further concentrates on support for the L-59 aircraft in Tunisia
and in particular on the completion of the project of "Implementation
of DV-2 Engine Overhaul", which already included two successful
overhauls and subsequent delivery of two DV-2 engines after the
overhaul (OVHL) to Tunisia. Also the FOSS (Follow On Support and
Services) contract for the year 2012 has been signed.

Support for the L-59 aircraft in Tunisia
? Completion of the project – "Implementation of OVHL of DV-2 engines"
? Delivery of two engines after OVHL to Tunisia
? Signature of FOSS for 2012

The Division is very actively engaged in providing support to customers
operating the L-39 aircraft. It performed contracts in Algeria
(extension of service live and delivery of spare parts) and signed a new
contract for delivery of spare parts to Vietnam and the contract for
extension of service live of the L-39 aircraft units in the Slovak Republic.
Facts expected in 2012:
? Further upgrades of the L-159 fleet of the Army of the Czech Republic
? Contract for support for the repair line in Algeria
? Commencement of negotiations on a contract for OVHL's
of 9 aircraft units in Tunisia
? Negotiations on the contract for upgrade of the aircraft in Vietnam
? Acquisition of a contract for extension of TBO and repairs of the
aircraft units in Bulgaria
? Utilization of training capacities in AV aircraft units
? Obtaining approval for maintenance of the L-39 aircraft in the civil
register
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Support for L-39 Aircraft and Customers
? Performance of contracts in Algeria (extension of service life
of the aircraft and delivery of spare parts) – 18 aircraft extended
so far, 9 left
? New contract for deliveries of spare parts to Vietnam
? New extension contract for the L-39 aircraft in the Slovak Republic
Training on AV Aircraft
? More than 25 flight hours flown for the pilots of the Army of the
Czech Republic and approximately 10 hours for foreign pilots
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Company Income
In 2011 Aero achieved an economic profit of 174.55 mil. CZK. Aero thus
continues to make a profit since the successful completion of restructuring
the company in 2007 when the company was taken over by the Penta
Group. The amount of profit was negatively influenced by the situation on
the world markets, to which some customers responded by deferring of
deliveries until 2012. The assets of the company as of 31 December 2011
amounted to 5,343 billion CZK. The equity covered 52.9% of assets and
it amounted to 2,828 billion CZK as of 31 December 2011.

Revenues
Total revenue of the company in 2011 reached the value of 2,207 billion
CZK, of which sales of own products and services amounted to 93.71%,
sales of goods to 4.67%, and sales of material and assets to 1.62%. In comparison to the previous year, there is a decrease of 20%, which was caused
by postponement of deliveries to next years. The Aerostructures Division
reached in 2011 the revenues of 1,461 billion CZK for the delivered goods,
products and services. The decisive role in the revenues of the division was
played by the Sikorsky production program, which continues to remains
a key production program of the company. As far as other cooperation
programs, significant revenues of the division were achieved in the Alenia
C-27J production program. For the upcoming years the expectations are to
increase the deliveries of the S-76 D-type helicopter and to increase
diversification of revenues of the division mainly due to the production of the
leading edge for the CSeries aircraft and increase of deliveries of the
UH-60M helicopter cockpits. The Defence & MRO Division contributed
in the company's revenues with 33%, the largest generators of sales
includedperformanceofcontractswiththeMinistryofDefenceandoverhauls
for Ministries of Defense of Algeria and Tunisia. During 2011 the AERO
Vodochody a.s. exported the goods, products and services in the amount

of 1,692 billion CZK. Revenues from abroad contributed to total sales with
76.7%, representing the annual increase of share of 11.45%.

Profit
Net profit In 2011 in the amount of 174,55 mil. CZK consisted of the
operating profit of 158.2 mil. CZK, the financial profit of 16.75 mil. CZK,
the extraodrinary profit of -0,95 mil. CZK and tax on profit or loss on ordinary
activities -0,562 mil. CZK. The profit achieved was lower than planned.
For operating profit the main cause may be seen in limitation of supplies
to major customers of the Aerostructures Division. In comparison to the
plan, the number of the S-76D helicopters sold decreased and the deliveries of the UH-60M helicopter cockpits were reduced from 9 planned to
3. Contributions to the financial result of Aero in 2011 were the
revenues and costs from derivative transactions, cost and revenue
income, and exchange rate differences, and other financial costs.
In 2011 Aero realized losses from derivative operations in the
amount of 5.87 mil. CZK. The interest received from loans provided
exceeded the interests from loans received by 78.3 mil. CZK.
Exchange rate losses in 2011 exceeded exchange rate profit by 30.84
mil. CZK. Other financial costs (insurance and fees associated with
loans) spent by Aero in the last year amounted to 24,86 mil. CZK.

175
MILLION WAS
NET PROFIT
OF AERO IN 2011

Asset Structure
The value of assets of the company as of 31 December 2011 amounted
to 5,343 billion CZK. In comparison to the assets as of the end of
2010, it means an increase of 5.15%. The value of assets was affected
by the merger with Technometra Radotín, a.s., by the ongoing
investments and transfer of deliveries to the end of 2011 and to 2012.
Long-term company assets increased in comparison to the previous
year by 229 mil. CZK, which represents an annual increase by
23.34%. Long-term assets contributed to the total value of assets
by 31.8%. The growth of the long-term assets was caused mainly by
construction of composite facility, development and activation of the
CSeries program, and the merger with Technometra Radotín, a.s.
The increase of long-term assets was also, of course, supported by
other investments in modernizing existing assets.
The value of current assets as of 31 December 2011 amounted to
3,554 billion CZK, the share in the amount of total assets was 66.5%.
In comparison to the previous year, there was an increase by 24 mil. CZK;
this was caused by increase of material in stock and work in progress
due to deferments in deliveries to the end of 2011 and to 2012. Due
to the lower sales the volume of trade receivables decreased by 55 mil, CZK.
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Financial Situation – Structure of Liabilities
As of 31 December 2011 the equity covered 53% of the assets of the
company. 100% of shares of the company are owned by TULAROSA a.s.,
which is a part of the consolidation unit of the Penta Investments
Limited group.
In comparison to 2010, both the absolute value of equity and
its share in total assets decreased. This annual decline in equity by
50 mil. CZK was caused by differences from revaluation of hedging
derivatives entered into, the payment of dividends on profits from
2010, and takeover of losses from previous years for the company
Technometra Radotín, a.s.
Funding from external sources annually increased by 311.6 mil. CZK,
i.e. by 14.3%. The dominant sources of external capital were bank
loans and current liabilities. Current liabilities as of 31 December
2011 amounted to 591 mil. CZK. The annual increase was due to an
increase in short-term trade payables associated with a higher
number of invoices received by the end of 2011.
At the end of 2011 Aero drew bank loans amounting to 1,550 billion CZK,
of which long-term loans amounted to 1,316 billion CZK and shortterm loans to 234 mil. CZK. Long-term bank loans consist of three
different loans, two of which provided by a consortium of banks
consisting of the Czech Savings Bank, Commercial Bank and
the Czech Export Bank, and one by the Commercial Bank together
with the Czech Savings Bank. These are the loans used to finance
the production of programs of Sikorsky and CWB for the Alenia
Aeronautica (since 1 January 2012 Alenia Aermacchi) and a loan to
finance the outstanding debts for the PP2000 project. Part of the loan
for financing the outstanding debts for the PP2000 project will be repaid
during 2012 and therefore it is shown in the short-term bank loans.
Short-term bank loans include also the current account drawn.

Investments, Development Programs,
Research and Development
Investment and development activities were in compliance with the
long-term strategy of the company management. In 2011, building
of modern composite facilities continued, which will be completed in
2012. Aero received a grant for this investment from the European
funds in the amount of 29 mil. CZK from the innovation program.
Further investments were related to upgrading and modernizing
of the existing production capacities. For 2011 the investments
amounting to 67 mil. CZK were approved; the most remarkable ones
include the reconstruction of the paint shop and optimizing of the
S-76D production line. Significant resources were directed also
to the development of new products, specifically the leading edge
for the CSeries aircraft (total development costs are calculated
in the amount of 370 mil. CZK, in 2009 this project was selected in
a competition under the support of research and development of
the TIP program and it received the grant of 93 mil. CZK) and the
leading edge, doors, ramps and the fuselage rear part of the
KC-390 multipurpose military transportation aircraft (total development costs are calculated at 1,1 billion CZK, in 2011 the project was
applied in the competition within the support of research and
development of the TIP program and Aero received the grant
of 123 mil. CZK). Activation of the results of development of the
products mentioned in 2011 amounted to 100.5 mil. CZK.

5400
SQUARE METERS
HAS THE NEW
COMPOSITE SHOP
IN AERO

In 2011 Aero filed an application in the Operational Program Enterprise and Innovations (OPEI) in the INNOVATION program for a grant
for new technologies needed for manufacturing of the leading edge
product of the CSeries aircraft. If the project will be approved,
funding will be obtained in the amount of 49.8 mil. CZK. Further
application in 2011 was submitted within the Potential program
for a grant to expand the development facility for manufacturing of
advanced aircraft parts (expected amount of grant is 99.5 mil. CZK).

The company manages the risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate
and regularly ensures security through hedging products (usually
forwards, currency and interest swaps).
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Quality Management System
General requirements of the Integrated Management System
During the year 2011 the optimization of the existing quality management system was proven in practice. The conformity of the quality
management system was tested in 2011 by independent audits
of certification bodies (LRQA) and also by audits by the supervising
authorities of state administration (CAA for civil aviation and by OVL
for military). No significant non-conformities to legislative requirements were found during these audits. A combined certification audit
focused on environmental protection (ISO 14001) and Operational
Health and Safety (OHSAS 18001) was performed in June 2011.
Granting of the certificate upgraded the Quality Management
System to an Integrated Management System (IMS).
In September 2011 Aero passed a re-certification within the scope of
the upgraded aviation standard AS9100 Rev. C. Thus the company
became the first company with a proven incorporating of the revised
requirements in the Czech Republic and it belongs among the first
50 companies worldwide. In November 2012 the first part of successful
certification audit of the Risk Management System (BCMS) was done.
Quality policy of AERO Vodochody a.s. was reviewed with respect to
compliance with corporate strategy and quality objectives set
for 2011. In connection with the implementation of standards of
environmental protection ISO 14001 and Operational Health and
Safety OHSAS 18001 the Quality Policy has been transformed into
the Integrated Management System and the related environmental
programs. In implementing the recommendations from the review
of the management system the company's management strongly
supported the activities especially in areas focusing on customer
requirements, support of continuous and sustainable development,
and solving of bottleneck issues. The commitment of the company
for 2012 is to further develop environmental programs, support
operational health and safety, promote methods of analysis of
causes of process and product non-conformities and reduce risk
sources. In the area of product realization then to eliminate
bottlenecks in the implementation processes and implement the
principles of multi-level planning.
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Specific requirements of customer on integrated management system
There were 62 customer audits performed in Aero during the year 2011.
No significant non-conformities concerning specific requirements
of customers were revealed during these audits, both with regard
to the integrated management system, and with regard to the
implementation of products.
Continuous improvement of Integrated Management System – WING
Activities related to continuous improvement of integrated system of
management and implementation of products were performed in
accordance with the methodology summarized in the WING
handbook. In 2011 the substantial part of the company management
passed the training focused on the principles and tools of the WING
operating system and their practical application in everyday practice.
It is a commitment of the company for 2012 to train all employees
within the defined requirements and to link the theoretical trainings
with real application in practice leading to intensification of continuous
improvement with regard to the strategic objectives defined.

14001

ISO

AERO WAS
AWARDED BY
THIS CERTIFICATE
FOR ITS POSITIVE
ATTITUDE TO
PROTECTION
OF ENVIRONMENT

Environment
In 2011 Aero produced total of 11.73 tons of dangerous materials
(of which 4.42 tons of volatile organic materials, 5.22 tons of nitrogen
oxides and 1.026 tons of solid particles). The main emitters were the
boiler plant, chemical plants and paint-shops. The measurements
of all sources verified that the emission limits were met in 2011.
The advances for air pollution for 2012 paid in 2011 amounted in
total to 24,900 CZK, of which 13,100 CZK for medium and big
sources, and 11,800 CZK for small sources.
In 2011 Aero produced 1,828.36 tons of waste (of which 764.77 tons
of dangerous waste). Aero spent on liquidation of waste the amount
of 2,908,556 CZK. In 2011 Aero consumed 80,503 m3 of ground water
(of which 73,721 m3 for industrial technology) and produced 64,8 m3
of waste water. Water consumption fees reached the amount of
234,727 CZK. The total fees for discharging waste water in 2011
amounted to 15,956 CZK, of which the fees for discharged pollution
amounted to 15,956 CZK and 0 CZK for discharged volumes of water.
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Human Resources

Major Events in first months of 2012

In management of human resources Aero focused in 2011 on the tasks
associated with increase of the number of employees caused by the
commercial success of the company and with direct support to its
development. Aero fulfilled the vision of a learning company by successful
completion of a training center with financial support from the EU.

January 2012 Accession of a new HR director – Tomáš Vlček
February 2012 Accession of a new Purchasing director
– Jan Priškin
March 2012
New Collective Agreement signed
April 2012
The first prototype of the fixed leading edge
for the CSeries aircraft shipped
New composite workshop put in operation

Active cooperation with the aviation industry and educational
institutions in development of education for the aviation industry
belongs among the main priorities of the Confederation of Czech
Aviation Industry founded by AERO Vodochody together with eight
other aircraft manufacturers in June 2011.

1316
EMPLOYEES
WORKED
IN AERO AT
THE END OF 2011

In 2011 the average number of employees was 1,223 and the total
number of employees to the 31st December 2011 reached 1,316.
During this period, more than 268 new employees were hired
for skilled blue-collar and technical jobs for preparation and implementation of existing and new production programs. 109 employees
left the company.
Total turnover in 2011 reached 2.53%. Growth in the number of
employees opened new topics in human resources particularly
concerning streamlining the process of adaptation and development.
The average wage reached the amount of 33,236 CZK. The fulfillment
of customer requirements on qualification and expertise of employees
represented an important task also in 2011. Language teaching,
professional and legislation courses, training of technicians and
administrative staff and management development activities
created the total cost of education in the amount of 5,420,290 CZK.
Development cost per one employee in 2011 reached 4,432 CZK.
In 2012 AERO Vodochody plans to further increase the number
of employees up to 1,590.
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Integrated management system WING
Through WING, AERO wants
to achieve the following:

Structure of WING
WING consists of basic principles, control corner stones and tools.

For its Customers
? Create a management standard containing convincing guarantees
allowing us to maintain the position of a top supplier in the long-term
For its Suppliers
? Offer a framework for the creation of a responsible and efficiently
built partnership
For its Employees
? Introduce an environment where desirable and undesirable
behavior is unambiguously defined and where, at the same time,
there is a transparent and understandable relation between the
excellent performance of an individual and the company

VALUE FOR CUSTOMER

Basic Principles
? define the principles, which control the behavior and the decisionmaking of AERO employees
Control Corner Stones
? contain the most important approaches supporting the AERO
company management
Tools
? describe the innovative procedures for the execution and the
support of management activities, which are applied at AERO to
a larger extent

PROFESSIONALITY

W
I
N
G

AYS OF

MPROVEMENT
AVIGATE US TO

ROWTH

TIME IS MONEY

BASIC PRINCIPLES
CUSTOMER CONTROLLED QUALITY ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT
OF OBJECTIVES

LEAN THINKING

ETHICS FIRST
MULTILEVE PLANNING

CONTROL CORNER STONES
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENT OF CONSTRAINTS

5S

SPC

KAIZEN

TPM

SMED

VSM

TOOLS
FMEA

QUALITY TEAMS

PROCESS ANALYSIS
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Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry
History of CCAI

Objectives of the Confederation

Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry (in Czech: Svaz
českého leteckého průmyslu) was established on 9 June 2011.
The Confederation associates companies that belong among
traditional and most important producers of aviation machinery
in the Czech Republic and decided to actively develop cooperation
between the members, support their expertise and specialization,
and resolve an issue of competitiveness of Czech aviation industry
and education for aviation industry.

The Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry was established
with the following objectives:
1. Develop cooperation between its members and cooperation
aimed at obtaining new contracts
2. Strengthen competitiveness of the Czech aviation industry
3. Support and promote education for aviation industry
4. Support research projects with industry application

The establishment of CCAI is a response of Czech aviation industry
to changes in the field of aviation production, and defines new
priorities and action plans with the task to offer its current and
future customers and partners an effective and reliable production
and development.
Thanks to high level of technology of aviation products and export
potential aviation industry is a key segment of Czech economy.
Successes attained by individual members are prerequisites for
further development of aviation production in the Czech Republic
and increase of employment.
The CCAI builds on Czech aviation industry tradition and creates
modern, qualified industrial base that is capable to succeed on
global market of aviation producers.
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CCAI’s aim is to create conditions for execution of current aviation
projects, to develop the Czech aviation industry and to acquire new
businesses.
CCAI’s priority is to increase production, revenues, employment
and export of the Czech aviation industry.

Founding members
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?
?

AERO Vodochody a.s.
LETOV LETECKÁ VÝROBA s.r.o.
JIHLAVAN, a.s.
GE Aviation Czech s.r.o.
QUITTNER & SCHIMEK s.r.o.
A T G s.r.o. (ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY GROUP, spol. s r.o.)
LA Composite, s.r.o.
ZNOJEMSKÉ STROJÍRNY, s.r.o.
ZLÍN AIRCRAFT a.s.

confederation of the czech aviation industry
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L-159
? Single-seater L-159 aircraft is designed
as a light combat aircraft optimized for various
tasks as air-to-ground and air-to-air operations
and reconnaissance mission
? The aircraft is equipped by the most modern
radar for all-weather and day and night
operations and can carry a wide range of NATO
standard equipment, including air-to-air
and air-to-ground missiles and laser
guided bombs

Photo: Jan Kouba

Opinion of the supervisory board
According to the § 198 Commercial Code supervisory board has
reviewed regular 2011 final accounts of AERO Vodochody a.s.
After regular final accounts discussion and auditor standpoint
identification supervisory board recommended the submitted
regular 2011 final accounts for regular company general meeting
approval on its sitting on 13 April 2011.

Supervisory board has further commanded regular general meeting
to approve the board of directors proposal on 2011 profit allocation
of CZK 174,547 mil. as follows:
- CZK 8,727 mil. to the company reserve fund,
- The rest of CZK 165,820 mil. to transfer from the 431 Economy
result in approval procedure account to the 428 Retained income
from the past years.

In Odolena Voda, 13 April 2011

142
THOUSAND CZK
WAS AERO’S
PROFIT PER
EMPLOYEE IN 2011

Václav Štajner
Chairman of the Supervisory board
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Independent Auditor’s report
To the Shareholder of AERO Vodochody a.s.:
I. We have audited the financial statements of AERO Vodochody a.s.
(“the Company”) as at 31 December 2011 presented in the annual
report of the Company on pages 54 – 85 and our audit report dated
13 April 2012 stated the following:
“We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AERO
Vodochody a.s. which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December
2011, and the income statement and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. For details of AERO Vodochody a.s.
see Note 1 to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility
for the Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Act on Auditors and International Standards on Auditing as amended
by implementation guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including an
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

annual report 2011 AERO Vodochody a.s.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AERO Vodochody a.s. as at 31
December 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

Emphasis of Matter

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

independent auditor’s report

We draw attention to the facts disclosed in Notes 4c and 28 to the
financial statements, which describe that the recoverability of the
cost of the investment in Rotortech Aero Composites Limited amounting
CZK 227,663 thousand is subject to the payment of compensation by
a related party PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED pursuant to a settlement
agreement entered into in March 2012. Our opinion is not qualified
in respect of this matter.”
II. We have also audited the consistency of the annual report with
the financial statements described above. The management of
AERO Vodochody a.s. is responsible for the accuracy of the annual
report. Our responsibility is to express, based on our audit, an opinion
on the consistency of the annual report with the financial statements.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing and the related implementation guidance issued by the
Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the information presented in the annual report that
describes the facts reflected in the financial statements is consistent,
in all material respects, with the financial statements. We have checked
that the accounting information presented in the annual report on
pages 8 – 40 is consistent with that contained in the audited financial
statements as at 31 December 2011. Our work as auditors was confined
to checking the annual report with the aforementioned scope and did

not include a review of any information other than that drawn from the audited accounting
records of the Company. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Based on our audit, the accounting information presented in the annual report
is consistent, in all material respects, with the financial statements described above.
III. In addition, we have reviewed the accuracy of the information contained in the report
on related parties of AERO Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2011 presented
in the annual report of the Company on pages 86 – 87. The management of AERO
Vodochody a.s. is responsible for the preparation and accuracy of the report on related
parties. Our responsibility is to issue a report based on our review.
We conducted our review in accordance with the applicable International Standard on Review
Engagements and the related Czech standard No. 56 issued by the Chamber of Auditors of
the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform the review to obtain
moderate assurance as to whether the report on related parties is free from material
misstatement. The review is limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel, to analytical
procedures applied to financial data and to examining, on a test basis, the accuracy
of information, and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed
an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the report on related parties of AERO Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2011
is materially misstated.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401
Represented by Partner

Radek Pav
Auditor, License No. 2042

13 April 2012
Prague, Czech Republic
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Sikorsky S-76
? Civilian helicopter of lower-middle class
(up to 6 tons of weight)
? Can carry up to 12 passengers
? In 2010 Aero switched from production of C++
version to newer D model, which differs
mainly by a new generation of cockpit
including autopilot
? S-76 helicopter is operated in 37 countries,
mainly in North America and Asia
? S-76 is designed for different types
of missions, but this type of helicopter
id most often used for transport
of employees of mining companies to oil rigs

Financial statement
BALANCE SHEET - LONG FORM (in thousands of Czech crowns)

Current year
Net

Prior year 2010
Net

A.

TOTAL ASSETS
STOCK SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLE

5,342,837
0

5,080,939
0

B.

FIXED ASSETS

1,699,071

1,470,095

B. I.
B. I.

B. II.
B. II.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Intangible assets
Foundation and organization expenses
Research and development
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets in progress
Advances granted for intangible assets

186,962
0
0
3,371
24,095
0
2,009
157,487
0

151,587
0
0
2,663
25,823
0
1,054
122,047
0

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Tangible assets
Land
Constructions
Separate movable items and groups of movable items
Perennial crops
Livestock
Other tangible assets
Tangible assets in progress
Advances granted for tangible assets
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property

938,843
51,106
440,493
277,219
0
0
3,384
143,362
23,279
0

757,035
24,897
421,685
264,152
0
0
3,454
42,743
104
0

Financial investments
Subsidiaries
Associates
Other long-term securities and interests
Loans to subsidiaries and associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term investments in progress
Advances granted for long-term investments

573,266
573,266
0
0
0
0
0
0

561,473
561,473
0
0
0
0
0
0

B. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Current year
Net

Prior year 2010
Net

CURRENT ASSETS

3,554,089

3,529,946

1
2
3
4
5
6

Inventory
Materials
Work in progress and semi-finished production
Finished products
Livestock
Goods
Advances granted for inventory

1,320,666
742,945
571,454
0
0
3,054
3,213

1,210,407
676,671
530,567
0
0
467
2,702

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Long-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Long-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Deferred tax asset

1,326,321
0
1,326,321
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,262,885
0
1,262,885
0
0
0
0
0
0

C. III.
C. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Short-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Social security and health insurance
Due from government - tax receivables
Short-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables

692,534
566,874
23,550
0
0
0
22,189
26,172
52,158
1,591

773,716
621,846
120,592
0
0
0
122
14,873
14,720
1,563

C. IV.
C. IV. 1
2
3
4

Short-term financial assets
Cash
Bank accounts
Short-term securities and interests
Short-term financial assets in progress

214,568
4,084
210,484
0
0

282,938
4,756
278,182
0
0

D.

OTHER ASSETS - TEMPORARY ACCOUNTS OF ASSETS

89,677

80,898

Accrued assets and deferred liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Unbilled revenue

89,677
69,819
19,789
69

80,898
68,328
0
12,570

C.
C. I.
C. I.

C. II.
C. II.

D. I.
D. I.
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Financial statement
Current
year

Prior year
2010

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY

5,342,837
2 ,828,084

5,080,939
2,878,084

1
2
3

Basic capital
Registered capital
Own shares and own ownership interests (-)
Changes in basic capital

1,883,589
1,883,589
0
0

1,883,589
1,883,589
0
0

1
2
3
4
5

Capital funds
Share premium (agio)
Other capital funds
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities
Gain or loss on revaluation of company transformations
Difference made by transformation of company

4,856
0
28,720
(32,931)
0
9,067

30,400
0
28,720
1,680
0
0

A III.
A III. 1
2

Reserve funds and other funds created from profit
Legal reserve fund
Statutory and other funds

271,416
267,144
4,272

249,871
245,575
4,296

A. IV.
IV. 1
2

Profit (loss) for the previous years
Retained earnings for the previous years
Accumulated loss of previous years

493,676
493,734
(58)

282,847
282,905
(58)

A. V.

Profit (loss) for the year (+ / -)

174,547

431,377

A.
A. I.
A. I.

A. II.
A II.

Current
year

Prior year
2010

2,497,942

2,186,330

Provisions
Provisions created under special legislation
Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for corporate income tax
Other provisions

160,544
0
0
0
160,544

191,613
0
0
0
191,613

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Long-term liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Advances received
Bonds payable
Notes payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability

195,884
0
195,884
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

195,884
0
195,884
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

B. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Liabilities to employees
Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance
Due to government – taxes and subsidies
Advances received
Bonds payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities

591,090
386,021
0
0
0
29,915
16,966
6,688
43,865
0
53,845
53,790

350,189
208,978
0
0
0
27,459
14,783
12,764
35,282
0
34,393
16,530

B. IV.
B. IV. 1
2
3

Bank loans and borrowings
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Borrowings

1,550,424
1,315,976
234,448
0

1,448,644
1,348,644
100,000
0

C.

OTHER LIABILITIES - TEMPORARY ACCOUNTS OF LIABILITIES

16,811

16,525

Accrued liabilities and deferred assets
Accruals
Deferred income

16,811
1,101
15,710

16,525
905
15,620

B.
B. I.
B. I.

B. II.
B. II.

C. I.
C. I.
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Financial statement
Current
year

Prior year
2010

Revenue from sale of goods
Cost of goods sold

103,028
146,085

220,686
175,187

GROSS MARGIN

(43 057)

45,499

INCOME STATEMENT - LONG FORM (in thousands of Czech crowns)
A.

I.

1
2

+
II.
II.

B.
B.
B.

1
2
3

Production
Revenue from sale of finished products and services
Change in inventory produced internally
Own work capitalized

2,278,266
2 068,030
95,546
114,690

2,630,595
2,511,216
41,468
77,911

1
2

Production related consumption
Consumption of material and energy
Services

1,441,067
900,275
540,792

1,546,133
1,161,304
384,829

VALUE ADDED

794,142

1,129,961

O.

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of company or cooperation bodies
Social security and health insurance
Other social costs

669,329
490,348
759
163,355
14,867

586,695
432,064
350
144,503
9,778

P.

Taxes and charges
5,534
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets
97,192
Revenue from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials
35,791
Revenues from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets
16,656
Revenue from sale of materials
19,135
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials sold
40,683
Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold
15,491
Materials sold
25,192
Change in provisions and allowances relating to operations and in prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) (161,016)
Other operating revenues
734,146
Other operating expenses
754,172
Transfer of operating revenues
0
Transfer of operating expenses
0

5,349
90,132
27,963
5,298
22,665
23,908
4,678
19,230
(19,234)
1,116,310
1,177,695
0
0

+
C.
C.
C.
C.
C.

1
2
3
4

D.
E.

1
1

F.
F.
F.
G.

III.
III. 1
2

1
2
1
IV. 2
H.
1
V. 2
I.
1
*
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PROFIT OR LOSS ON OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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158,185

409,689

K.
L.
M.
N.

VI. 1
2
VII.
VII. 1
2
3
VIII. 1
2
IX. 1
2
1
X. 1
2
XI. 1
2
XII. 1
2

Revenue from sale of securities and interests
Securities and interests sold
Income from financial investments
Income from subsidiaries and associates
Income from other long-term securities and interests
Income from other financial investments
Income from short-term financial assets
Expenses related to financial assets
Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Change in provisions and allowances relating to financial activities
Interest income
Interest expense
Other finance income
Other finance cost
Transfer of finance income
Transfer of finance cost

*

PROFIT OR LOSS ON FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Q.
Q.
Q.

R.
S.
S.
S.

1
2

Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities
- due
- deferred

Current
year

Prior year
2010

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
114,733
36,417
306,538
368,104
0
0

4,291
4,508
0
0
0
0
22
1,100
0
0
(1,100)
106,379
26,206
266,842
325,985
0
0

16,750

20,835

(562)
205
(767)

0

175,497

430,524

**

PROFIT OR LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION

XIII. 1
2
1
1
2

Extraordinary gains
Extraordinary losses
Tax on extraordinary profit or loss
- due
- deferred

323
1,273
0
0
0

3,334
2,481
0
0
0

*

EXTRAORDINARY PROFIT OR LOSS

(950)

853

0

0

1

Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)

***

PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR (+/-)

174,547

431,377

****

PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

173,985

431,377
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Financial statement
CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the years ended 31 December 2011
(in thousands of Czech crowns)

Current
year

Prior year
2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Z.

430,524

(18,563)
98,331
(116,094)
(31,069)
25,953
(1,165)
(78,316)
83,797

42,830
90,132
(20,922)
588
(19,061)
(403)
(80,173)
72,669

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION,
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

156,372

473,354

Change in non-cash components of working capital
Change in inventory
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, short-term loans and in accruals and deferred income

176,669
(12,497)
(14,607)
(35,522)
177,043
62,253

(72,131)
330,132
(148,548)
(17,386)
(223,888)
(12,441)

A **

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION,
INTEREST PAID AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

333,041

401,223

A. 3. 1.
A. 4. 1.
A. 5. 1.

Interest paid
Tax paid
Gains and losses on extraordinary items

(36,417)
(205)
(950)

(29,134)
0
853

A ***

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

295,469

372,942

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

A *
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
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2.
2.
2.
2.
2.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Foreign exchange differences
Gain/Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest expense and interest income
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received)
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Prior year
2010

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans granted
Interest received
Dividends received

(344,468)
16,656
33,606
70,644
0

(186,624)
9,589
51,723
98,914
0

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(223,562)

(26,398)

102,547

346,116

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
174,935

A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

PROFIT OR LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION (+/-)

Current
year

B.
B.
B.
B.
B.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

B ***

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
C. 1.

Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans

C. 2. 1.
C. 2. 2.
C. 2. 3.

Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
Dividends or profit sharing paid
Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash

0
(250,000)
7,176

0
(600,000)
0

C

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(140,277)

(253,884)

(68,370)
282,938

92,660
190,278

214,568

282,938

F.
P.
R.

***

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR
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UH-60M
Black Hawk
? Sikorsky Blackhawk helicopter is one
of the most important and most numerous
military technology of the US Army
? Presently, around 2,500 helicopters
of the UH-60 family are in service
at the military forces of the USA
and other states

Notes to the financial statement
1. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY
AERO Vodochody a.s. ("the Company") is a joint stock company incorporated on 2 January 1991 in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered office is located at Odolena Voda,
Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic and the business registration number (IČ) is 00010545. The Company is involved in cooperation in production of helicopters
and aircraft parts, foreign trade of military products, development, production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat jets, and other aircraft related work.
Shareholders holding a 10% or greater interest in the Company’s basic capital are as follows:
TULAROSA a.s.
100,00 %
The parent company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located at Na Příkopě 583/15, Praha 1, Czech Republic. In 2011, all shares held by Salori Holding B.V.
(48.50% interest) were transferred to TULAROSA a.s. that thus became the sole shareholder of AERO Vodochody a.s. The ultimate parent company is Penta Holding
Limited, with its registered office in Agias Fylaxeos & Polygnostou, 212, C&I Center, 2nd floor, Limassol, the Republic of Cyprus (registration number 101 570). The Company
is the parent company of the AERO Vodochody Group and the accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate financial statements. Consolidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) have been prepared by the parent company. In accordance with
the valid Czech accounting legislation, the Company is exempt from the obligation to prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with Czech GAAP.
Members of the statutory bodies as at 31 December 2011 were as follows:
Board of Directors
Supervisory Board
Chair:
Ladislav Šimek
Chair:
Václav Štajner
Member:
Petr Brychta
Member:
Zdeněk Sýkora
Member:
Ondřej Benáček
Member:
Jan Borýsek
On 16 November 2011, a merger of AERO Vodochody a.s. and its subsidiary, Technometra Radotín, a.s., business registration number (IČ): 00238856, with its
registered office in Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, Zip code 250 70, was entered in the Commercial Register. As a result of the above national merger
by consolidation, the dissolving company, Technometra Radotín, a.s., was wound up without liquidation and its assets and liabilities, including any rights and
obligations arising from employment, were transferred to the legal successor, AERO Vodochody a.s. The decisive date of the merger was 1 January 2011.
2. 1.BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines as applicable for 2011 and 2010. As at
1 January 2011, the Company merged with its subsidiary, Technometra Radotín, a.s., in the form of a national merger by consolidation (see Note 1). Due to immateriality
of merger effects on the accounting balances as at 31 December 2011, the information from the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 were used as comparative information for 2010 in accordance with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines. The effects of the merger are described below in relevant Notes.
3. 1.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2011 and 2010 financial statements are as follows:
A) A)INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related expenses.
Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized over their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets (with a cost of less
than CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried only in a subsidiary ledger. Internally-developed intangible fixed assets are recorded at their
accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and production overheads.
Amortization
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights

Years
3
15

B) TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand are recorded at their acquisition cost, which consists of purchase price, freight,
customs duties and other related costs. Internally-developed tangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist
of direct material, labor costs and production overheads. Interest and other financial expenses incurred in the construction of tangible fixed
assets are also capitalized. Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement cost and are recorded with
a corresponding credit to the ‘Other capital funds account’ on the date of acquisition. The replacement cost of these assets is set on the basis
of the cost known at the moment of the respective asset acquisition. The costs of technical improvements are capitalized. Repairs and
maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangible fixed assets

Years
30 - 45
10 - 30
8 - 20
4 - 15
5 - 20

An allowance is created against tangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying amount.
C. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand and at bank. Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership
interests and shareholdings. Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes the purchase price and direct costs
related to the acquisition, e.g. fees and commissions paid to agents and stock exchanges. As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting
dominant or significant influence are valued at acquisition cost. If there is a decrease in the carrying value of long-term financial assets that are
not revalued at the balance sheet date, the difference is considered a temporary diminution in value and is recorded as an allowance.
D. INVENTORY
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include
acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc.). Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard cost,
which approximates actual. The cost of inventory produced internally includes direct material and labor costs and production overhead costs.
Production overhead costs include energy, repairs and maintenance, telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production
services and materials and are allocated based on direct labor hours.
E. RECEIVABLES
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value after allowance for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance
account are charged to income.
F. DERIVATIVES
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other short-term receivables or payables, as appropriate, in the accompanying
balance sheet. Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives. The latter are designated as either fair value
hedges or cash flow hedges. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow must
offset, in whole or in part, the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from the hedged item. In addition, there must be formal documentation
of the hedging relationship at inception and the Company must prove that the hedging relationship is highly effective. In all other cases, derivatives
are recognized as held-for-trading. Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
held for trading are reported in income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are also recognized in income,
together with the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges are taken to equity and reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities.
Any ineffective portion of the hedge is reported in income.

An allowance is created against intangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying amount.
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G. EQUITY
The basic capital of the Company is stated at the amount recorded in the Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court. Any increase or decrease in the basic
capital made pursuant to the decision of the General Meeting which was not entered in the Commercial Register as at the financial statements date is recorded
through changes in basic capital. Contributions in excess of basic capital are recorded as share premium. Other capital funds are created pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation. In accordance with the Commercial Code, the Company creates a legal reserve fund from profit. In the first year in which profit is generated,
a joint-stock company should allocate 20% of profit after tax (however, not more than 10% of basic capital) to the legal reserve fund. In subsequent years, the legal
reserve fund is allocated 5% of profit after tax until the fund reaches 20% of basic capital. These funds can only be used to offset losses.
H. PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are carried at their nominal values. Amounts resulting from the revaluation of financial derivatives at fair value are shown
in other payables. Short-term and long-term loans are recorded at their nominal values. Any portion of long-term debt which is due within one year of the balance
sheet date is classified as short-term debt. Contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the balance sheet because significant uncertainties exist with respect
to the amount, title or timing of the expected outflow of benefits are described in Note 19.
I. FINANCIAL LEASES
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments and capitalizing the residual value of the leased assets when the lease contract expires
and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments paid in advance are recorded as prepaid expenses and amortized over the lease term.
J. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns at the exchange rate prevailing
as at the transaction date. On the balance sheet date monetary items are adjusted to the exchange rates as published by the Czech National Bank as at 31 December.
Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses were charged or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.
K. RECOGNITION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the related goods or services occurs, regardless
of when the related monetary flow arises. The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or allowances against risks, losses or physical damage
that are known as at the financial statements’ date. Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed contract method (or as specified in the contract).
L. INCOME TAX
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by the appropriate permanent
and temporary differences (e.g. non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences between book and tax depreciation, etc.).
The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for corporate income tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.
M. SUBSIDIES
The subsidies to cover costs are recorded in other operating income upon receipt of the subsidy, observing the matching and accrual principles applied to accounting
for related costs. The subsidies for the acquisition of intangible and tangible fixed assets and technical improvements, along with subsidies to cover interest included
in the acquisition cost, either reduce the related acquisition or accumulated cost. Received subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment enables the Company
to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt and utilization. In 2011 and 2010, the Company received subsidies from the government of CZK 44,641 thousand and CZK 14,263 thousand,
respectively which were accounted for as other operating revenues. In 2010, the Company received subsidies for intangible fixed assets of CZK 28,551 thousand.
N. EMISSION ALLOWANCES
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets, which are not depreciated and are valued at cost or replacement cost when acquired free-of-charge.
The “use of emission allowances” is recorded as at the financial statements’ date contingent to the volume of accounting unit’s emissions in the calendar year.
The first free-of-charge acquisition is recorded as other liabilities, which are recognized into income at the time and in the amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.
O. USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company management prepared
these estimates and predictions based on all available relevant information. These estimates and assumptions are based on information available as at the date
of the financial statements and may differ from actual results.
P. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation is recognized in the financial statements
provided these events provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet. If material events reflecting the facts occurring
after the balance sheet date happened between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation the consequences of these events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements but not recognized in the financial statements.
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4. FIXED ASSETS
A) INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (in CZK thousands)
COST
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
2011 Total
2010 Total

At beginning of year
191,796
75,857
1,054
122,047
390,754
331,047

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
2011 Total
2010 Total

At beginning of year
(189,133)
(50,034)
(239,167)
(236,573)

Additions
2,301
40,265
42,566
63,110

Disposals
(1,788)
(1,788)
(3,403)

Amortization during year
(3,652)
(1,728)
(23)
(5,403)
(4,381)

Transfers
4,360
465
(4,825)
-

Disposals
1,788

At end of year
(192,785)
(51,762)
(23)
(244,570)
(239,167)

At end of year
196,156
75,857
2,032
157,487
431,532
390,754
Net book value
3,371
24,095
2,009
157,487
186,962
151,587

As at 31 December 2011 intangibles in progress include, in particular, assets purchased from Sonaca S.A., assets internally developed within the development
of a part of the wing for the CSeries aircraft for the Canadian producer Bombardier and assets internally developed within a project for the Brazilian company Embraer.
As at 31 December 2010 intangibles in progress include, in particular, assets purchased from Sonaca S.A. and assets internally developed within the development
of a part of the wing for the CSeries aircraft for the Canadian producer Bombardier. Patents, royalties and similar rights are amortized over their useful lives
as specified in the relevant contracts. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the total value of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying
balance sheet, was CZK 5,531 thousand and CZK 5,342 thousand at acquisition cost, respectively. Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 203,822 thousand are fully
amortized as at 31 December 2011. Other intangible fixed assets represent carbon emission allowances (“allowances”). The Company was issued free of charge allowances
constituting the right to emit 6,288 tons of gas emissions in 2011. These emission allowances were valued at their replacement cost totaling CZK 2,301 thousand.
See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2011. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):
Value
of emission
allowances
At beginning of year
1,054
Free of charge allocation of allowances
2,301
Emission allowances required to cover the level of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2011
(1,784)
Emission allowances required to cover the level of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2010 – additional charge
(4)
Total as at 31 December 2011
1,567

Other
operating
revenues
1,784
4
1,788

Other
operating
expenses
(1,784)
(4)
(1,788)

Other
liabilities
(1,054)
(2,301)
1,784
4
(1,567)

In addition to the emission allowances, other intangible fixed assets as at 31 December 2011 include other intangibles acquired for the purposes
of the “training center” project totaling CZK 465 thousand.
a)See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2010. In connection with the movements of the allowance account,
the following amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):
Value
of emission
allowances
At beginning of year
614
Free of charge allocation of allowances
2,055
Emission allowances required to cover the level of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2010
(1,613)
Sale of allowances
(2)
Total as at 31 December 2010
1,054

Other
operating
revenues
1,613
2
1,615

Other
operating
expenses
(1,613)
(2)
(1,615)

Other
liabilities
(614)
(2,055)
1,613
2
(1,054)
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B. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)
COST
Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
2011 Total
2010 Total
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
2011 Total
2010 Total

At beginning
of year
24,897
917,158
1,271,334
239,232
3,842
9,330
42,743
284
2,508,820
2,436,569

Effect
of merger
15,690
90,115
18,509
124,314
-

Additions
198,143
29,077
227,220
104,654

Disposals
(104)
(1,151)
(36,156)
(649)
(16)
(7,837)
(6,082)
(51,995)
(32,403)

Transfers
10,623
12,015
66,549
208
292
(89,687)
-

At end
of year
51,106
1,018,137
1,320,236
238,583
4,034
9,622
143,362
23,279
2,808,359
2,508,820

At beginning
Effect Depreciation Cost of sales
At end
Net book
of year of merger during year orliquidation Disposals Transfers
of year Allowances
value
- 51,106
(486,399)
(55,769)
(28,298)
1,151
- (569,315)
(8,329) 440,493
(1,020,824)
(12,108)
(50,267)
(7,553)
36,129
- (1,054,623)
- 65,613
(49,574)
(12,846)
649
(61,771)
(165,445) 11,367
(3,795)
(16)
16
(3,795)
39
(5,876)
(362)
(6,238)
3,384
- 143,362
- 23,279
(1,566,468)
(67,877)
(91,789)
(7,553)
37,945
- (1,695,742)
(173,774) 938,843
1,490,483
(85,751)
(1,763)
17,906
(6,377) (1,566,468)
(185,317) 757,035

As at 31 December 2011, tangibles in progress include in particular modernization of the composite parts production site. The total value of small tangible
fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, was CZK 729,014 thousand and CZK 714,172 thousand at acquisition cost
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively. Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 743,238 thousand are fully depreciated as at 31 December 2011.
The Company has adjusted the carrying value of certain tangible assets for a diminution in value through an allowance charged against income (see
Note 7). Allowances relating to buildings were established in the amount of 100% of their net book value as the Company does not expect to use these assets
in the future. Allowances relating to Ae-270 aircraft were initially established in the amount of 100% of its net book value. In 2009 they were reduced
by the value arising from the concluded agreement on the aircraft sale, which was planned for 2010. However, as a result of the contract failure, the
allowances relating to Ae-270 aircraft were again increased to the net book value level in 2010 and their amount did not change in 2011. As at 31 December
2011 and 2010, a part of the buildings with a cost of CZK 19,653 thousand and CZK 19,653 thousand respectively, and with a net book value of CZK
9,519 thousand and CZK 10,010 thousand, respectively, were located outside the Company’s production plant (flats, accommodation facilities).
On 8 December 2005, the Company signed a general agreement for post-warranty support of L-159 and L-39 aircraft (see Note 19) with the Ministry
of Defence of the Czech Republic pursuant to which the Company committed itself to hold with limited disposal rights a significant portion of fixed assets
(particularly land, production halls, airport and other assets necessary for maintaining the ability to provide service repairs for the Army of the Czech
Republic). The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 445,027 thousand and CZK 435,841 thousand and their net book value was
CZK 201,184 thousand and CZK 214,961 thousand as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively. This commitment is not entered in the Cadastral Register.
On 23 September 2010, AERO Vodochody a.s. and Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s. entered into a contract
for the establishment of the right of pledge securing the Company’s immovable assets (buildings and land) with respect to the provided pre-export
loan (see Note 14). As at 31 December 2011, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 317,542 thousand and the net book value amounted
to CZK 143,308 thousand. The acquisition cost of land was CZK 14,481 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings was CZK 125,699 thousand whereas
their net book value amounted to CZK 55,864 thousand; the acquisition cost of machinery and equipment was CZK 177,362 thousand and its net book
value amounted to CZK 72,963 thousand. As at 31 December 2010, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 326,422 thousand and the
net book value amounted to CZK 160,646 thousand. Of the above, the acquisition cost of land was CZK 13,371 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings
was CZK 135,689 thousand whereas their net book value amounted to CZK 59,073 thousand; the acquisition cost of machinery and equipment was
CZK 177,362 thousand and its net book value amounted to CZK 88,203 thousand. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, certain tangible fixed assets (office
building, maintenance objects, waste storage, junction exchange station) were no longer in service. These assets had an original cost of CZK 29,716
thousand and CZK 29,995 thousand, respectively, and net book value of CZK 8,329 thousand and CZK 9,075 thousand respectively. As at 1 January 2009,
assets with an original cost of CZK 276,601 thousand and net book value of CZK 222,571 thousand were used as a non-monetary contribution in Letiště
Vodochody a.s. (see Note 4c). The acquisition cost of land was CZK 179,759 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings was CZK 96,842 thousand whereas
their net book value amounted to CZK 42,812 thousand.
C. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (in CZK thousands)
Summary of changes in long-term financial investments:

Subsidiaries
Associates
Allowances
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Balance
Balance
Balance
as at 31/12/
as at 31/ 12/
Effect
as at 31/12/
2009 Additions Disposals Revaluation
2010 of merger Additions Disposals Revaluation
2011
526,447
37,078
(1,056)
(996)
561,473 (110,220) 120,000
2,013
573,266
1,100
(1,100)
(1,100)
1,100
-
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Subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2011 were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Name
Registered office
Percentage of ownership
Total net assets
Equity
Basic capital and capital funds
Funds created from profit
Accumulated loss/retained earnings
Profit/loss for the current year
Acquisition cost of share/interest
Nominal value of share/interest
Intrinsic value of share/interest

Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Odolena Voda
100
1,920,464
1,580,893
1,979,817
(365,836)
(33,088)
344,571
1,979,817
1,580,893

Rotortech Aero Composites Limited
United Kingdom
100
2,140
499
80,334
(71,601)
(8,234)
227,663
80,334
499

Subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2010 were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Clester Trading a.s.
Slovak Republic
100
97
(3,614)
(3,365)
(249)
1,032
856
-

Technometra
Radotín, a.s.
Odolena Voda
100
173,176
170,308
119,287
8,869
50,295
(8,143)
110,220
119,287
170,308

Letiště
Vodochody a.s.
Odolena Voda
100
1,917,842
1,493,981
1,859,817
(335,215)
(30,621)
224,571
1,859,817
1,493,981

Rotortech Aero
Composites Limited
United Kingdom
100
9,627
8,230
75,710
(67,480)
(42,968)
225,530
8,230

Clester
Trading a.s.
Slovak Republic
100
900
(3,510)
832
83
(241)
1,153
-

Financial information about Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from the company’s standalone audited financial statements as at 31 December 2011. Financial
information about Rotortech Aero Composites Limited and Clester Trading a.s. was obtained from the companies’ standalone unaudited financial statements
as at 31 December 2011.

Financial information about Technometra Radotín, a.s., and Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from the companies’ standalone audited
financial statements as at 31 December 2010. Financial information about Rotortech Aero Composites Limited and Clarex Investments a.s. was
obtained from the companies’ standalone unaudited financial statements as at 31 December 2010.

In 2011, Rotortech Aero Composites Limited terminated all its business activities. In March 2012, AERO Vodochody a.s. and PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED, which
sold Rotortech Aero Composites to the Company back in 2009, agreed that – due to failing of the declared economic return on the investment – the companies
would conclude a settlement agreement; pursuant to the agreement, PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED would decrease the purchase price of Rotortech Aero
Composites and compensate the buyer for the amount invested in the company in 2010 in order to maintain its production capacity. PENTA INVESTMENTS
LIMITED shall pay the respective amounts to AERO Vodochody a.s. in 2013 at the latest. Based on the above, the management of the Company decided not to
establish an allowance against the financial investment as at 31 December 2011.

In 2010, the Company made financial investment in the form of the acquisition of Clester Trading a.s., with its registered office in the Slovak
Republic and the basic capital totaling EUR 33 thousand (CZK 832 thousand). Acquisition cost of this investment was EUR 37 thousand
(CZK 1,063 thousand) and CZK 90 thousand. The Company sold its 100% interest in Clarex Investments a.s. to Clester Trading a.s.

In 2011, the Company made a cash contribution of CZK 120,000 thousand to the basic capital of Letiště Vodochody a.s.; the basic capital of the company thus
increased to CZK 1,979,800 thousand.
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Percentage of ownership
Total net assets
Equity
Basic capital and capital funds
Funds created from profit
Accumulated loss/retained earnings
Profit/loss for the current year
Acquisition cost of share/interest
Nominal value of share/interest
Intrinsic value of share/interest
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In 2009, AERO Vodochody acquired a 100% stake in the British company Rotortech Aero Composites Limited from a company within the PENTA
INVESTMENTS LIMITED group. The acquisition price amounted to CZK 190,600 thousand. In 2010, the Company made a monetary contribution
of GBP 1,200 thousand (CZK 34,930 thousand) in Rotortech Aero Composites Limited and thus increased its investment in the company.
The Company provided loans to and received loans from subsidiaries and associates (see Note 22).
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5. INVENTORY

7. ALLOWANCES

Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has been written down to its estimated net realizable value by an allowance account. The allowance is determined
by management based on an inventory aging analysis and the analysis of its future usability (see Note 7).

Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets (see Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the allowance accounts (in CZK thousands):

Allowances as at 31/ 12/ 2011
against (in CZK thousands):
Ae-270
L-159
L-39, L-59
Sikorsky Program
Tunisia
Not-assigned materials
Other inventory
Total

Balance
as at 31/12/
Allowances against:
2009
Tangible fixed assets
174,670
Long-term financial assets
1,100
Inventory
1,335,126
Advances granted for inventory
10,156
Receivables - legal
2,273
Receivables - other
5,941
Total
1,529,266

Materials
286,641
302,316
178,343
31,220
103,359
10,096
21,565
933,540

Work-in-progress,
semi-finished products and goods
127,241
100,008
13,983
13,325
4,981
2,845
1,134
263,517

Advances
granted for inventory
4,925
3,154
448
390
8,917

Additions
22,106
12,164
1,018
19,426
54,714

Deductions
(11,459)
(1,100)
(52,471)
(914)
(2,074)
(7,618)
(75,636)

Balance
as at 31/12/
2010
185,317
1,294,819
10,260
199
17,749
1,508,344

Effect
of merger
202
148
350

Additions
69,484
165
202
9,178
79,029

Deductions
(11,543)
(167,246)
(1,710)
(53)
(14,921)
(195,473)

Balance
as at 31/12/
k 2011
173,774
1,197,057
8,917
348
12,154
1,392,250

Inventory up to CZK 550,000 thousand were pledged in favor of Česká spořitelna, a.s. to secure provided loans (see Note 14).
6. RECEIVABLES
Allowances against outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful were charged to income based on their analysis in 2011 and 2010, respectively (see
Note 7). As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, receivables overdue for more than 180 days totaled CZK 19,590 thousand and CZK 7,502 thousand, respectively.
In 2011 and 2010, the Company sold receivables of CZK 687,383 thousand and CZK 1,074,294 thousand, respectively. The income from the sale of the receivables
was CZK 685,267 thousand and CZK 1,071,109 thousand in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Nominal values of these receivables along with the income from the sale
of the receivables were included in other operating expenses or other operating revenues, as appropriate, in the income statement. As at 31 December 2011 and
2010, unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loans to related parties (see Note 22).
Long- and short-term receivables from related parties (see Note 22).
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8. SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

10. EQUITY

As at 31 December, the Company had the following restricted cash balances (in CZK thousands):

The basic capital of the Company comprises 968,356 ordinary registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 913,458
priority registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 887,366 registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal
value of CZK 2 and 1 priority registered share in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 2. Other capital funds are primarily comprised
of the remaining balance of financial restructuralization from previous years. Other funds from profit represent a social fund.

Bank
Komerční banka, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
Total

2011
Amount in foreign currency
Currency
(in thousands)
USD
3
EUR
706

2010
Amount Amount in foreign currency
in CZK thousands
(in thousands)
62
18,213
575
18,275

Amount
in CZK thousands
14,422
14,422

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see Note 14).
On 23 September 2009, the Company concluded an agreement on the overdraft facility of CZK 70,000 thousand with Komerční banka, a.s. (see Note 14). The overdraft
was used on an ongoing basis during 2011; its balance was CZK 44,448 thousand as at 31 December 2011. The maturity of the loan is set on 21 June 2012.
For deposits in related parties see Note 22.
9. OTHER ASSETS
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid insurance fees, interest expenses and overhead costs, which are charged
to income for the year in which they were incurred.
As at 31 December 2011, specific-purpose prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid expenses related to preparation and implementation of production
within the Black Hawk program for Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation and Sonaca program for Bombardier.
As at 31 December 2010, accrued revenues include in particular commision from an offset program from 2010.

The movements in the capital accounts during 2011 and 2010 were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Balance
as at 31/12
2009
2,769,181
1,883,589
28,720

Number of shares
Basic capital
Other capital funds
Differences arising from revaluation
(7,601)
of assets and liabilities
Legal reserve fund
231,611
Other funds
16,011
Retained earnings
605,851
Accumulated loss
(58)
Differences arising from company transformations
-

Increase Decrease
9,281

Balance
as at 31/12
Effect
2010 of merger Increase Decrease
2,769,181
1,883,589
28,720
-

Balance
as at 31/12
2011
2,769,181
1,883,589
28,720

-

1,680

-

-

(34,611)

(32,931)

13,964
- (11,715)
277,054 (600,000)
-

245,575
4,296
282,905
(58)
-

51,021
9,067

21,569
409,808
-

(24)
(250,000)
-

267,144
4,272
493,734
(58)
9,067

The Annual General Meeting held on 30 June 2011 approved profit share distribution in the total amount of CZK 250,000 thousand; the Annual
General Meeting held on 29 June 2010 decided on the payment of share in retained earnings totaling CZK 600,000 thousand and the transfer
of CZK 11,715 thousand from other capital funds to retained earnings.
In 2011 and 2010, gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities arose due to the revaluation of derivative transactions (see Note 16) and the revaluation of contributions (see Note 4c) in Clester Trading a.s. and Rotortech Aero Composites Limited. Differences arising from company transformations
represent the difference between the basic capital of Technometra Radotín, a.s. as at the merger date totaling CZK 119,287 thousand and the book value
of the investment of CZK 110,220 thousand in accounting of AERO Vodochody a.s.. The Annual General Meetings held on 30 June 2011 and 29 June 2010,
respectively approved the following profit distribution for 2010 and 2009 and compensation of the accumulated loss for previous years (in CZK thousands):
Profit for 2009
Allocation to legal reserve fund
Dividend distribution
Transfer from other capital fund
Undistributed profits added to retained earnings
Retained earnings as at 31/ 12/ 2010
Accumulated loss as at 31/ 12/ 2010
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279,304
(13,964)
(600,000)
11,715
(322,946)
282,905
(58)

Profit for 2010
Allocation to legal reserve fund
Dividend distribution
Undistributed profits added to retained earnings
Effect of merger
Retained earnings as at 31/ 12/ 2011
Accumulated loss as at 31/ 12/ 2011

431,377
21,569
(250,000)
(159,808)
(51,021)
493,734
(58)
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11. PROVISIONS

12. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The movements in the provision accounts were as follows (in CZK thousands):

As at 31 December, the Company had the following other long-term payables (in CZK thousands):

Balance
Provisions
as at 31/12/ 2009
Contractual charges and penalties
Guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1
8,506
Overhaul Tunisia
902
Ae-270 contract
3,395
Staff bonuses
34,114
Accrued vacation
7,646
Guarantee repairs Sikorsky
135,483
Contractual charges and penalties Latecoere
Guarantee repairs CASA
Contractual charges and penalties SAAB
Guarantee repairs Alenia
979
Business transaction Black Hawk
Business transaction VDOT
PP penalties
Total
191,025

Additions
9,972
3,094
43,727
13,153
6,975
4,100
2,058
6,000
155
89,234

Deductions
(3,395)
(34,114)
(7,646)
(39,891)
(3,600)
(88,646)

Balance
as at 31/ 12/ 2010
9,972
11,600
902
43,727
13,153
102,567
4,100
2,058
2,400
1,134
191,613

Additions
43,450
16,552
5,836
2,893
20,603
1,535
7,105
7,193
105,167

Balance
Deductions as at 31/ 12/ 2011
(6,651)
3,321
(5,650)
5,950
902
(43,727)
43,450
(13,153)
16,552
(38,402)
70,001
(4,100)
2,893
(1,076)
982
(2,400)
(20,957)
780
(120)
1,415
7,105
7,193
(136,236)
160,544

Sikorsky guarantee repairs
The Company established a provision in the amount of estimated costs for expected guarantee repairs related to the Sikorsky helicopter deliveries. As at 31
December 2011 and 2010, the provision totaled CZK 25,952 thousand and CZK 44,049 thousand, respectively.
In 2008 a constructional defect affecting 193 Sikorsky helicopters was detected, which was caused by a failure in the implementation of the helicopter design
on the part of the Company. For the sake of prudence, the Company established a provision for the elimination of the constructional defect in 2008. The provision
amounted to CZK 61,479 thousand and CZK 44,049 thousand in 2010 and 2011, respectively.

Payables to Salori Holding B.V.

Terms/Conditions
Maturity: 2059; floating interest rate, up to 140% of the CNB discount rate

2011
195 884

2010
195 884

On 7 January 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an agreement on the change in provisions on loan repayment. Accordingly,
the companies agreed to replace the existing fixed interest rate by a fee based on the financial result of the Company before taxes and interest
(EBIT). However, the maximum fee shall not exceed the amount corresponding to 140% of the Czech National Bank discount rate times the
unpaid loan principal. In addition, the maturity of the loan was postponed to 31 January 2059.
In 2011 and 2010, the changes related to a long-term payable to Salori Holding B.V. were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Loan
Interest
Total

Balance Payment of principal
as at 31/ 12/ 2009
and interest
59,479
138,929
(3,977)
198,408
(3,977)

Loan
interest
1,453
1,453

Balance
as at 31/ 12/ 2010
59,479
136,405
195,884

Payment of principal
and interest
(1,453)
(1,453)

Loan
Balance
interest as at 31/ 12/ 2011
59,479
1,453
136,405
1,453
195,884

The interest expense relating to the loan from Salori Holding B.V. for 2011 and 2010 was CZK 1,453 thousand and CZK 1,453 thousand, respectively.
On 4 September 2007, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded a payable subordination agreement concerning the payable that the Company
has to Salori Holding B.V. Pursuant to the agreement, the payable to Salori shall be subordinated to the payable recorded by AERO Vodochody
a.s. with respect to the loans granted to AERO Vodochody a.s. by the banks (Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka,
a.s.). AERO Vodochody a.s. may redeem the subordinated payable only after it has settled the liability arising from the loan or with a prior banks’
consent in writing.
13. CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company had overdue current payables totaling CZK 93,523 thousand and CZK 11,004 thousand, respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular, supplies of material and services, which are charged to income for the year in which they were incurred.
Advance payments received as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 include in particular advance payments from Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. for the production
of aerospace components. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company had liabilities of CZK 16,966 thousand and CZK 14,783 thousand,
respectively within due date owing to social security and health insurance premiums.
As at 31 December 2011, other liabilities comprise in particular negative fair values of outstanding hedging derivatives (see Note 16).
Payables to related parties (see Note 22).
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14. BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2010, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):

On 23 July 2010, the Company was provided a revolving loan by Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s., for financing of the
Sikorsky program. The limit of the agreed revolving loan is USD 60,000 thousand (CZK 1,196,400 thousand) and the credit limit for purchase of receivables is USD
42,000 thousand (CZK 837,480 thousand). At any time the sum of these two loans may not exceed the limit of USD 92,000 thousand (CZK 1,834,480 thousand).
The loans bear a floating interest rate of 1M LIBOR + margin. Their maturity is set on 22 March 2013. As at 31 December 2011, the drawn down element of the loan
was USD 60,000 thousand (CZK 1,196,393 thousand). The loans are secured by pledged receivables and rights resulting from the general agreement with
Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation; the receivables and rights were pledged in favor of Česká spořitelna, a.s. on 9 March 2011.

Bank
Česká spořitelna, a.s.

On 23 September 2010 the Company concluded a loan agreement with Česká spořitelna, a.s. and Komerční banka, a.s. for CZK 350,000 thousand. These funds are restricted
for financing of a liability arising from a contract for work done (PP-2000 project) effected with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic. A full amount of the loan
(CZK 350,000 thousand) was drawn on 1 October 2010. As at 31 December 2011, the Company repaid CZK 110,000 thousand in compliance with a payment schedule
and as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 the remaining balance of the drawn loan was CZK 240,000 thousand and CZK 340,000 thousand respectively. The loan bears a floating
interest rate of 1M Pribor + margin. The outstanding balance of this loan is CZK 190,000 thousand in 2012 and the maturity of the whole loan is set on 30 June 2013.

Total

On 23 September 2010, the Company and Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s. entered into a loan agreement on pre-export
financing of production of the wing centre section for Alenia Aeronautica SpA. up to EUR 3,000 thousand (CZK 77,400 thousand) and a loan agreement on purchase
of receivables up to EUR 2,500 thousand (CZK 64,500 thousand). At any time the sum of these two loans may not exceed the limit of EUR 4,500 thousand (CZK
116,100 thousand). The loans bear a floating interest rate of 1M EURIBOR + margin. Their maturity is set on 23 May 2013 and 23 September 2013. As at 31 December
2011 and 2010, the drawn down element of the loan was EUR 2,697 thousand (CZK 69,583 thousand) and CZK 0 respectively.

Komerční banka, a.s.

Terms
non-specified
non-specified
09/09
06/10
non-specified
06/10

Amount
897
742
1,250
1,895
11,277
112,506
128,567

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash of CZK 18,275 thousand and CZK 14,422 thousand,
respectively deposited in restricted bank accounts (see Note 8).
15. OTHER LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, deferred income includes in particular revenue from sales related to the Sonaca transaction, which is
recognized into income for the year in which it was earned.
16. DERIVATIVES

Pursuant to a general agreement on the provision of financial services and pertinent addenda entered into by and between the Company and Komerční banka, a.s., on
23 September 2009, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 70,000 thousand (until 21 June 2012) to temporarily compensate for insufficient funds. The
loan interest rate is O/N PRIBOR actual + margin. The loan was drawn and repaid on an ongoing basis in 2011. As at 31 December 2011, the Company drew CZK 44,448
thousand of the overdraft. The loans are secured by pledged intangible and tangible assets, inventory and receivables resulting from the loans provided to the related
party PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED (see Notes 4b, 5 and 22). The Company concluded respective contracts on establishment of the right of pledge in favor of Česká
spořitelna, a.s. The total interest expense on all received bank loans for 2011 and 2010 was CZK 34,721 thousand and CZK 24,138 thousand in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at 31 December 2011 and 2010. The derivatives were revalued at fair value, with
positive and negative fair values of the hedging derivatives being included in other receivables and other payables, respectively, and in differences
arising from the revaluation of assets and liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.
The following table summarizes face values and positive or negative values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

Based on the loan agreements, the Company is obliged to fulfill the following financial covenants:

(in CZK thousands)
Foreign exchange contracts
Options
460,416
Forwards
Total derivatives held for hedging 460,416

Covenant
Net debt
Debt coverage ratio
Financial leverage

Calculation
(Bank loans – Short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
(Annual net income + amortization/depreciation + change in provisions and allowances – change
in inventories – change in current receivables (net of receivables within the Group) + change
in current payables – CAPEX + interest payments)/(interest payments + bank loan payments)
(Total provisions and liabilities – Loans from related parties) / Total assets

Required value
< 3:1
>= 120%
< 50%

As at 31 December 2011, the Company met the above financial indicators, except for the net debt indicator.

Bank
Česká spořitelna, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
Total
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Terms
non-specified
5/21
07/20
01/12

Contractual/
Face value

Amount
789
5,313
14,190
123
20,415

2011
Fair value
Positive
-

Negative

Contractual/
Face value

2010
Fair value
Positive

Negative

33,929
33,929

171,603
171,603

2,695
2,695

-

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments of assets and liabilities in a hedge of a foreign currency or interest rate risks and that meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The following table summarizes face values and positive or negative values
of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):
Contractual/
Face value

As at 31 December 2011, the Company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):
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Guarantee
- performance bond
- performance bond
- performance bond
- performance bond
- performance bond
- bid bond

(in CZK thousands)
Interest rate contracts
Swaps
797 600
Foreign exchange contracts
Options
122 631
Total derivatives held for trading 920 231

2011
Fair value
Positive

Negative

Contractual/
Face value

2010
Fair value
Positive

Negative

-

5 966

-

-

-

-

12 465
18 431

-

-

-
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17. INCOME TAXES

18. LEASES

Profit before taxes
Non-taxable revenues
Differences between book and tax depreciation
Non-deductible expenses
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Shortages and losses
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses)
Taxable profit
Tax loss carry-forward
Current income tax rate
Income tax paid in the previous period
Current tax expense

2011 (in CZK thousands)
173,985
(7,079)
52,340

2010 (in CZK thousands)
431,377
(6,651)
(65,747)

(116,243)
(31,069)
18,438
15,762
106,134
(106,134)
19%
205
205

(18,848)
588
29,819
64,595
435,133
(435,133)
19%
-

In accordance with the Income Taxes Act, the Company can carry forward tax losses generated since 2006 for up to five years. The remaining tax loss carryforward
of Technometra Radotín, a.s. from the years 2007, 2008 and 2010, the benefit of which has not been recognized in the accompanying financial statements, amounted
to CZK 36,256 thousand as at 31 December 2011. It will be recorded when realized.
The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands):
2011
2010
Deferred tax
Deferred tax
Deferred tax
Deferred tax
Deferred tax items
asset
liability
asset
liability
Difference between net book value of fixed assets for accounting and tax purposes
20,202
17,132
Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory
4,003
5,322
Allowance against inventory
227,441
246,016
Allowance against fixed assets
33,017
35,210
Provisions
30,503
36,406
Tax loss carryforward
6,889
11,308
Total
322,055
351,394
Net
322,055
351,394
The Company has not recorded a deferred tax asset on the basis that its future recovery is uncertain. In 2011, the Company reversed a deferred tax liability of CZK
767 thousand, originally assumed as a result of the merger with Technometra Radotín a.s. (see Note 1).

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance sheet (see Note 3i).
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, assets which are being used by the Company under operating leases consist of the following (in CZK thousands):
Description
Information technologies

Terms
Until 2015

Expense in 2011
1,479

Expense in 2010
720

Cost
6,341

Assets which are being used by the Company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the Company when the lease term expires)
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):

Description
Machinery

Terms
Until 2021

Total
lease
126,126

Payments
made as at
31/ 12/ 2011
70,191

Payments
made as at
31/ 12/ 2010
42,616

Due within
one year
26,977

Remaining payments
as at 31/ 12/ 2011
Due over
one year
28,958

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company has a contractual relationship with mediators and records liabilities to them upon the completion of sales contracts. Pursuant
to the sale contract, the Company undertakes to pay the mediator a part of the income realized. It is not possible to determine the amount
until contract completion.Under the standard terms of its sales contracts, the Company has a responsibility to make spare parts available for
a period between 10-15 years after the date of sale.
As at 8 December 2005, the Company concluded with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic a general agreement for after warranty
support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft. The contract was signed for a definite period until January 2029. According to this agreement, the Company
is obliged to provide services, maintenance and spare parts for planes already owned by the Army of the Czech Republic, and to assist during
their modernization. In cases of significant breaches of the contractual terms or in case of withdrawal from the contract, the Ministry of Defence
of the Czech Republic is entitled to claim a penalty and potential additional compensation from the Company. Under the terms of this agreement,
a significant portion of its fixed assets may not be freely disposed of (see Note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term contracts with suppliers. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the commitments
arising from contracts concluded with suppliers amounted to CZK 954,833 thousand and CZK 568,288 thousand, respectively; of that the
supplies for the project Sikorsky totaled CZK 585,426 thousand and CZK 371,907 thousand, respectively. These contracts, as a rule, include
a provision stipulating the amount of compensation that the Company is obliged to pay if it fails to fulfill contractual obligations or if it withdraws
from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept responsibility for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded liability insurance for its own aviation activity, an accident insurance of aircraft and insurance for damage caused
by faulty products. The Company has concluded a combined insurance limit in the amount of USD 250,000 thousand regarding the liability
for product within the Sikorsky Program and of USD 75,000 thousand regarding other liability emerging from aeronautical operations for one
and all insured accidents arising during the insurance period worldwide. The insurance covers the major risks emerging from the Company’s
aeronautical operations.
In 1998, the Company together with GEO s.r.o. conducted an environmental audit, the result of which was, inter alia, a quantification of investments
required for making the production ecofriendly and for remedy of environmental damage. The cost estimate totaled CZK 248,375 thousand. Based
on the Contract for repayment of costs incurred in the settlement of environmental liabilities concluded between the Company and the National
Property Fund of the Czech Republic on 12 August 1998, the National Property Fund (currently the Ministry of Finance of the Czech Republic)
should cover those costs of the Company which are reasonably incurred up to CZK 2,691,926 thousand, which exceeds the estimate.
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20. REVENUES

Short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

The breakdown of revenues from ordinary activities (in CZK thousands):

2011
Foreign
1,463,645
1,463,645

Domestic
683,334
24,079
707,413

Aviation production
Non-aviation production
Total revenues

2010
Foreign
1,845,309
1,845,309

Domestic
864,221
22,372
886,593

In 2011, the revenues of the Company are concentrated primarily with four main customers in the aviation industry, i.e. Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, the Ministry
of Defence of the Czech Republic, Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. and Saab Aeronautics.
Subsidies received from the government for maintaining the Company’s operations were CZK 44,641 thousand and CZK 14,263 thousand in 2011 and 2010,
respectively and are recorded in other operating revenues.
21. PERSONNEL AND RELATED EXPENSES
The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows (in CZK thousands):
Total
personnel
1,225
490,348
163,355
14,867
759
669,329

Average number of employees
Wages and salaries
Social security and health insurance
Social cost
Bonuses to statutory representatives
Total personnel expenses

2011
Of which: members of
managerial bodies
12
31,510
6,435
894
102
38,941

2010
Of which: members of
managerial bodies
13
31,204
6,995
328
60
38,587

Total
personnel
1,122
432,064
144,503
9,778
350
586,695

The members and former members of statutory and supervisory bodies received total bonuses and other remuneration of CZK 759 thousand and CZK 350
thousand in 2011 and 2010, respectively.
22. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION
Benefits of certain members of the Company’s statutory bodies and management consist of the use of automobiles for private purposes. The Company sells
products, goods and provides services to related parties in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest income were CZK 130,062 thousand (of which
interest income was CZK 113,962 thousand) and CZK 136,457 thousand (of which interest income was CZK 106,199 thousand) in 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Summary of changes in long-/short-term loans provided to related parties (in CZK thousands):
Balance as
Balance as
at 31/ 12/
at 31/ 12/
2009 Additions Disposals Revaluation
2010
Long- and short-term receivables
(from subsidiaries/group
companies with majority control)

1,435,200

623,727

(686,073)

10,623

1,383,477

Balance as
at 31/ 12/
Vliv fúze Additions Disposals Revaluation
2011
104,091

460,668

(633,964)

35,599

1,349,871

Long-term loans provided to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Related party
Due dates/Interest rates
PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED – loan in USD
2013/7.58 %
PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED – loan in CZK
2013/7.58 %
Clarex Investments a.s. – loan in EUR
2015/6.10 %
Clarex Investments a.s. – loan in EUR
2013/7.58 %
Clester Trading a.s. – loan in EUR
2013/7.58 %
Total

Amount in original currency (in thousands)
33,650
626,400
300
655
167
-

2011
670,981
626,400
7,740
16,893
4,307
1,326,321

2010
555,967
699,400
7,518
1,262,885

Related party
Amount in original currency (in thousands)
Clarex Investments a.s. - interest in EUR (estimated item)
132
Clarex Investments a.s. - advance payment in EUR
472
Clarex Investments a.s. – trade receivables in EUR
63
Clester Trading a.s. – interest in EUR
13
Fortuna Entertainment – trade receivables in EUR
Fortuna Game a.s. – trade receivables in CZK
(9)
Letiště Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in CZK
3,029
Letiště Vodochody a.s. – interest in CZK (estimated item)
1,861
PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED – interest in USD
2,340
Privatbanka, a.s. – accrued interest in CZK
2
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited – interest in GBP (estimated item)
Žabka, a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
Total

Due dates
2012
2012
2012
2012
2011
2012
2012
2012
2012
2012
2011
2011

2011
3,401
12,175
1,635
326
(9)
3,029
1,861
46,653
2
69,073

2010
1,601
8,227
81
146
2,366
5,505
1
882
6
18,815

2011
16,550
7,000
23,550

2010
16,408
4,184
100,000
120,592

Short-term loans provided to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Related party
Clarex Investments a.s. – loan in EUR
Clester Trading a.s. – loan in EUR
Letiště Vodochody a.s. – loan in CZK
PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED – loan in CZK
Total

Amount in original currency (in thousands)
16,550
7,000

Due dates
2011
2011
2012
2012

In 2011 and 2010, the Company received interest on receivables from related parties totaling CZK 113,962 thousand and CZK 106,231 thousand,
respectively. As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded a deposit in related party Privatbanka, a.s., of CZK 155,554 thousand and
CZK 231,663 thousand, respectively. The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary course of
business. Purchases were CZK 55,552 thousand and CZK 81,521 thousand in 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Short-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Related party
Technometra Radotín, a.s.
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited
Fortuna Game a.s.
PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED o.z.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
Penta Investments Limited
AB Facility, a.s.
Penta Investments o.z. Slovensko
Total

Due dates
2010
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011
2011

2011
9
717
290
83
1,738
108
2,945

2010
2,933
2,233
15
204
335
1
5,721

2011
195,884

2010
195,884

Long-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):
Related party
Salori Holding B.V.

Due dates
2059

Long-term payables to Salori Holding B.V. relate to the payable from loan and related interest (see Note 12).

Short-term and long-term loans provided to the related party PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED are pledged in favor of Česká spořitelna, a.s. to secure provided loans
(see Note 14).
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23. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

26. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (SEE APPENDIX 1)

Research and development costs amounted to CZK 205,682 thousand and CZK 43,541 thousand in 2011 and 2010, respectively, and were expensed as incurred.

The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method.

24. SIGNIFICANT ITEMS OF INCOME STATEMENT

27. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SEE NOTE 10)

In 2011 and 2010, other operating revenues comprise in particular revenues from sale of receivables (see Note 6).
In 2011 and 2010, other operating expenses include in particular the nominal value of sold receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages and insurance fees.
In 2011 and 2010, other finance income and expense consist mainly of foreign currency gains and losses.

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

25. GOING CONCERN
The Company’s production portfolio consists of two main production programs: the Military Program comprises the L-159 project and overhauls of earlier types
of aircraft, and the Program of the Aerospace Cooperation includes mainly the production of the S-76 range of helicopters and the UH-60M Black Hawk helicopter
cabin for the American company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, production of the wing centre section of the C-27J Spartan aircraft for Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A.,
production of carriers for JAS-39 Gripen aircraft for Saab Aeronautics as well as other cooperation with leading global aerospace producers (Latecoere, Sonaca,
Messier-Bugatti-Dowty, Embraer and others).
The only one contractual partner of the production program L-159 is the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic. As at 8 December 2005, the Company has
concluded with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic a general agreement for after warranty support for the aircraft within which the Company would
provide servicing, maintenance and assist in the modernization of the fleet, increasing its lifespan, and deliveries of spare parts. The contract was signed for
a definite period until January 2029. Since the beginning of the production of the L-159 aircraft, the Company sold a total of 72 planes to the one and only
customer (i.e. to the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic). In addition, the Company has been focusing on possible sales of the unused L-159 aircraft of the
Army of the Czech Republic.

In early 2012, the Company was informed – in form of a summons to oral proceedings – of an action filed by A.I.C. Limited with a court in
Nigeria against several entities (the action was filed in August 2011), including AERO Vodochody a.s. The subject of the action is the payment of
USD 30,715 thousand (CZK 612,463 thousand), an alleged commission for arranging a contract with the Nigerian Ministry of Defence. As AERO
Vodochody a.s. entered in no contractual relationship with the plaintiff and did not use its services, the Company considers the action to be
unwarranted and ungrounded; therefore, it creates no provision for the litigation. However, the Company has been analyzing the litigation to
determine subsequent measures, if any.
In March 2012, AERO Vodochody a.s. and PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED entered into a settlement agreement; in accordance with the
agreement, the purchase price of Rotortech Aero Composites Limited, acquired by AERO Vodochody a.s. from PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
in 2009, will be reduced by CZK 189,000 thousand, and AERO Vodochody a.s. will be compensated the investment in Rotortech Aero Composites
Limited made in 2010 by GBP 1,200 thousand (as at 31 December 2011 by CZK 37,063 thousand). The agreement was concluded due to a failed
economic return on the investment originally declared by the selling party.

With respect to earlier types of aircraft (L-39, L-59), the Company will carry out respective overhauls, component repairs and will provide spare parts (Algeria,
Nigeria, Tunisia, Vietnam).
Cooperation projects include further supplies for the Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation which developed a growing trend until 2008 but decreased in volume based on
the number of placed orders in the subsequent years. However, the production of S-76 helicopters (in an estimated number of 28 units) will be the main source
of Company’s results in the year 2012. In addition, the Company plans to deliver 32 cabins for the UH-60M Black Hawk helicopter and 7 cabins for the S70i
helicopter for the Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation.
Based on the cooperation agreement with the Italian aircraft producer Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. (since 1 January 2012 Alenia Aermacchi), the Company will supply
8 pieces of the centre section of the wing for the C-27J Spartan transportation aircraft in 2012. The production will continue of 43 carriers for JAS-39 Gripen aircraft
for Saab Aeronautics. The Company will continue to supply cannon doors for Boeing and hinges and inner construction of doors for regional transportation jet planes
Embraer 170/190 based on the contract with Latecoere Toulouse. In addition, the Company maintains further cooperation with the Belgian company Sonaca
concerning the development of a wing leading edge for the CSeries aircraft for the Canadian producer Bombardier and plans to launch related production.
Further cooperation will be sought with Embraer in the development of components for its KC-390 aircraft.
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Report on relations between the related entities
Report on related parties Report of the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. according to provision of Section 66a of the Act No. 513/199, Coll. the
Commercial Code
SECTION I. CONTROLLED AND CONTROLLING PARTY
CONTROLLED PARTY
AERO Vodochody a.s., Seat at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, Postcode 250 70, Identification No.: 00010545
Registered in the Companies Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 449, (further referred to as “Company”)
CONTROLLING PARTY
Penta Holding Limited
Seat at Agias Fylaxeos & Polygnostou 212, C&I Center, 2nd floor; Limassol, Cyprus Republic, Registration No.: HE 101 570
SECTION II. RELATED PARTIES
Related parties are represented by the Company and parties directly and indirectly controlling, and companies controlled by the controlling party, i.e. from
January 4, 2007 parties controlled by Penta Holding Limited.
SECTION III. DECISIVE PERIOD
This report was elaborated for the period from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011.
SECTION IV. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS CONCLUDED BY RELATED PARTIES
In the decisive period, the following contracts
between related parties were signed:

Contract
Party
Name
Penta Investments Limited,
Insurance contract "F" No. 125007525 for credit insurance for
Tularosa a.s., Salori Holding B.V. pre-export financing of production for export of Alenia
Penta Investmensts Limited
Confidentiality Agreement – Kaman Aerospace Group

Date of
Signature

Provided Gained
Performance Perf. Duration Detriment
Pre-export credit
6.9.2011
- 31.3.2013
None
insurance by EGAP
28.7.2011 Confidentiality Agreement
- 28.7.2013
None

SECTION V. OTHER LEGAL ACTS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
No other legal acts are known to the Company carried out in the interest of the related parties.
SECTION VI. OTHER MEASURES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
No other measures were carried out in the interest of the related parties to the knowledge of the Company.
SECTION VII. CONCLUSION
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. states that it proceeded with all due diligence of a manager to establish the circle of related parties for the purpose of
this report: by consulting the controlling parties, both in the period before and after the change in the owner of the Company, regarding the circle of parties, which
were controlled by these parties in the given period.
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. proclaims that all fulfillments, considerations respectively, which were provided on the basis of the relations mentioned
in Sections IV. – VI. of this report, were in a customary amount. This report was presented for review to the Supervisory Board and to the auditor, who will perform the
audit of the financial statements as required by a special law.
In Odolena Voda, March 14, 2011
Ing. Ladislav Šimek, MBA
Chairman of the Board AERO Vodochody a.s.
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CSeries
CS100/CS300

? CSeries CS100/CS300 family presents
two types of passenger aircraft with capacity
between 100 and 150 seats
? Standard CS100 is designed
for 110 passengers
? Typical arrangement of CS300
is for 130 passengers
? Range of CSeries aircraft varies depending
on the version from 4000 to 5000 km

Aero - Yo
ur preferr
e
d p ar tn e r i
n aerospace

technologies • A

e ro - Your preferred partne r in aerospace technologies • Aero - Your p
n
referred par t

er in a eros
p a ce t e c h

AERO Vodochody a.s.
U Letiště 374, 250 70 Odolena Voda
Czech Republic

www.aero.cz

n o lo g i e s

© AERO Vodochody a.s.
Design: TAC-TAC agency s.r.o.

Legend:
L-39/59/159 military and civil operators
Aerostructure customers
Both

